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NOTICE is hereby given that the THIRTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING of Vardhman Acrylics Limited will be held on Wednesday, 
the 24th day of September, 2025 at 03:00 p.m. through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact 
the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
Item No. 1 – To adopt Financial Statements:
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 together 
with Report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2 – To declare Dividend:
To declare a dividend of H 1.50/- per equity share for the year ended 
March 31, 2025.

Item No. 3 – To re-appoint Mrs. Suchita Jain as a 
director liable to retire by rotation:
To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Suchita Jain (DIN: 00746471), 
who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152 (6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

Item No. 4 – To re-appoint Mr. Vivek Gupta as a director 
liable to retire by rotation:
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vivek Gupta (DIN: 10366909), who 
retires by rotation in terms of Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Item No. 5 – To approve annual remuneration payable 
to a single non-executive director in excess of the limit 
of 50% of the total annual remuneration payable to all 
non-executive directors:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), 
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
and Rules thereunder and Regulation 17(6)(ca) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for 
the time being in force), approval of the Members of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to 
Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary, Non-Executive Director designated as the  
Vice-Chairman of the Company, by way of commission for the 

Financial Year 2025-26 @ 2% of net profit of the Company as computed 
in the manner laid down in Section 197 and 198 of the Act and other 
applicable statutory enactments, in excess of the limit of 50% of the 
total annual remuneration payable to all non- executive directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed 
necessary, proper or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to 
this Resolution.”

Item No. 6- To approve continuation of directorship of 
Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary as a Non-Executive Director 
of the Company:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), 
the following resolution as a Special Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 
(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015,  approval of the Members of the Company be and 
is hereby given for continuation of the directorship of Mr. Bal Krishan 
Choudhary (DIN: 00307110), non-executive director of the Company, 
beyond 27th June, 2026, on attaining the age of seventy five years, as 
per his existing terms of appointment.”

Item No. 7 – To ratify remuneration payable to Cost 
Auditors for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2026:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), 
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and 
all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and the Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. R.A. Mehta, 
Cost Auditor, appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, 
to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the Financial 
Year ending 31st March, 2026, be paid the remuneration of ` 50,000 
plus applicable taxes.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Shri Paul Oswal, Chairman and 
Mr. Satin Katyal, Company Secretary, be and are hereby severally 
authorized to do all the acts and take all such steps as may be 
necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

NOTICE
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Item No. 8 – To appoint M/s. Ashok K Singla & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as 
Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five 
consecutive years:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), 
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, relevant 
circulars issued by SEBI (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and other 

applicable laws, if any, including Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
framed thereunder, approval of the Members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded for the appointment of M/s. Ashok K Singla 
& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company, for a term of five (5) consecutive years 
i.e. from financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30 at a fees of ` 35,000/- per 
annum, plus out-of-pocket expenses and applicable taxes.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Shri Paul Oswal, Chairman and 
Mr. Satin Katyal, Company Secretary, be and are hereby severally 
authorized to do all the acts and take all such steps as may be 
necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
Place: Ludhiana	  (Satin Katyal)
Date: 19.07.2025	 Company Secretary
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NOTES:
1. 	 As per the General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 

General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General 
Circular No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, General Circular 
No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, General Circular 
No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, General Circular No. 
10/2021 dated June 21, 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021 
dated December 8, 2021, General Circular No. 3/2022 dated 
May 5, 2022, General Circular No. 11/2022 dated December 28, 
2022, General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 
and General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 
(“the MCA Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/
CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, Circular No. SEBI/
HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD- 2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023, 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated 
October 07, 2023 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CFD-PoD-2/P/
CIR/2024/133 dated October 03, 2024 issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (collectively referred to as “SEBI 
Circulars”) and pursuant to Section 101 of the Act read with 
relevant rules made thereunder, this AGM is being convened 
to be held through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio 
Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the 
Members at a common venue. The proceedings of the AGM 
will be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of 
the Company which shall be the deemed Venue of the AGM. 
Notice of AGM is being sent only through electronic mode to 
those Members who have registered their email address either 
with the Company or with the Depository.

2. 	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended) and MCA Circulars, the 
Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members 
in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For 
this purpose, the Company has engaged the services of Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as the agency to 
provide e-Voting facility.

3. 	 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 
15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice (Refer Point 12). The facility of 
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served 
basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 

holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairperson 
of Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditor etc.

4. 	 Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the 
meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a 
poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member 
of the company. Since this AGM is being held through VC / 
OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of 
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available 
for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Route Map and 
Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.

5. 	 The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 
2013, which sets out details relating to Special Business at the 
meeting, is annexed hereto.

6. 	 The information pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 regarding the Director retiring by rotation/ seeking 
appointment/ re-appointment  in the Annual General Meeting 
is also being annexed hereto separately and forms part of the 
Notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite declarations 
for their appointment/re-appointment.

7. 	 The Company has fixed 12th day of September, 2025, as the 
“Record Date” to determine the names of the Members entitled 
to receive payment of dividend for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, if approved at the AGM. Further, the Register of 
Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company shall 
remain closed from 13th September, 2025 to 20th September, 
2025 (both days inclusive).

	 The Dividend, if approved, will be paid to those shareholders 
whose names appear: (a) as Beneficial Owners as at the end of 
the business hours on 12th September, 2025 as per the list to be 
furnished by NSDL and CDSL in respect of shares held in the 
Electronic Form; and (b) as Members in the Register of Members 
of the Company after giving effect to all valid share transmission 
or transposition request lodged with the Company on or before 
12th September, 2025.

8.	 The relevant statutory registers/documents will be available 
electronically for inspection by the Members during the AGM. 
Further, the documents referred to in the Notice, if any, will also 
be available electronically for inspection without any fee by the 
Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the 
date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can 
send an email at secretarial.lud@vardhman.com.

03

Statutory Report Financial Statements

mailto:secretarial.lud%40vardhman.com?subject=


	 DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH 
ELECTRONIC MODE:

9. 	 In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice 
of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent 
only through electronic mode to those Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. 
Further, in compliance with Regulation 36(1)(b) of the Listing 
Regulations, a letter providing the web-link, including the 
exact path, where Annual Report for the financial year 2024-
25 is available, is being sent to those members whose e-mail 
address is not registered with the Company / Registrar and 
Transfer Agent / Depository Participants / Depositories.

	 Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2024-
25 will also be available on the Company’s website i.e. www.
vardhman.com, website of the Stock Exchange i.e. National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and on 
website of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (e-Voting 
agency) at www.evotingindia.com.

10.	 For receiving all communications (including Annual Report) 
from the Company electronically:

a) 	 Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not 
registered/ updated their email address with the Company 
are requested to register / update the same by writing to 
the Company with details of folio number and submitting 
duly filled relevant KYC forms as available on the website of 
the Company i.e. www.vardhman.com, at secretarial.lud@
vardhman.com or to RTA at mparase@mcsregistrars.com

b) 	 Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are 
requested to register / update their email address with 
the relevant Depository Participant.

11. 	 INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND 
JOINING VIRTUAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:
(i) 	 The Remote e-Voting period commences on 21st 

September, 2025 (9:00 a.m.) and ends on 23rd September, 
2025 (5:00 p.m.). During this period, Members of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or 
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 17th 
September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The 
Remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for 
voting after end of voting period on 23rd September, 2025.

	 Further, the facility for voting through electronic voting 
system will also be made available at the Meeting and 
Members attending the Meeting will be able to vote at 
the Meeting.

(ii) 	 Members who have already voted through Remote 
e-Voting would not be entitled to vote during the AGM.

(iii) 	 As per SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 
dated December 9, 2020, on e-Voting Facility provided 
by Listed Entities, “individual shareholders holding 
shares of the Company in demat mode” can cast their 
vote by way of a single login credential, through their 
demat accounts/websites of Depositories/Depository 
Participants. Members are advised to update their 
mobile no. and email id in their demat account in order 
to access e-Voting facility. The procedure to login and 
access remote e-Voting and joining Virtual Meeting, as 
devised by the Depositories / Depository Participant(s), is 
given below:

Option 1 – Login through Depositories

NSDL CDSL
1. 	 Members who have already registered for IDeAS facility to follow 

below steps:
1. 	 Members who have already registered for Easi / Easiest to follow 

below steps:

(i) 	 Go to URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com

(ii) 	 Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under ‘IDeAS’ section.

(iii) 	A new page will open. Enter the existing User ID and Password. 
On successful authentication, click on “Access to e-Voting”.

(iv) 	Click on the company name or e-Voting service provider and 
you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting the vote during the remote e-Voting period.

(i) 	 Go to URL: www.cdslindia.com and then go to Login and select 
New System Myeasi.

(ii) 	 Login with user id and password.

(iii) 	Click on e-Voting. The option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication.

(iv) 	Click on Company name or e-Voting service provider name to 
cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2. 	 User not registered for IDeAS e-Services: 2. 	 User not registered for Easi/Easiest:

(i) 	 To register click on link: https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select option 
“Register Online for IDeAS” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/	
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

(ii) 	 Proceed with completing the required fields.

(i) 	 Option to register is available at www.cdslindia.com.

(ii) 	 Click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on 
registration option. 
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	 Option 2 - Login through Depository Participants.

	 You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Once login, you will be able 
to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option and you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication. Click on the Company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period.

	 Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are 
advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 
available at abovementioned website.

	 Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and 
NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in 
login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com or contact at 1800 21 09911

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue 
in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at evoting@
nsdl.co.in  or call at toll free no.:  
1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(iv) 	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
shareholders other than individual shareholders holding 
in Demat form & physical shareholders.

(i) 	 The Members should log on to the e-Voting website 
www.evotingindia.com.

(ii) 	 Click on “Shareholders” module.

(iii) 	 Now enter your User ID

a. 	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. 	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digits Client ID,

c. 	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form 
should enter Folio Number registered with 
the Company.

(iv)	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click 
on Login.

v)	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on 
to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-Voting 
of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vi)	 If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:	

For Shareholders holding shares in 
Demat Form other than individual and 
Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued 
by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 
both demat shareholders as well as physical 
shareholders). 
Members who have not updated their PAN 
with the Company/ Depository Participant 
are requested to use the sequence number 
sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/
RTA.  

Dividend  
Bank  
Details  
OR 
Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of 
Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded 
in your demat account or in the company 
records in order to login.

If both the details are not recorded with 
the depository or Company please enter 
the member id / folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in 
instruction (iii).

(vii) 	 After entering these details appropriately, click on 
“SUBMIT” tab.

NSDL CDSL
3. 	 Users can directly access e-Voting module of NSDL and follow the 

below process:
3. 	 Users can directly access e-Voting module of CDSL and follow the 

below process:

(i) 	 Go to URL:  https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/
evotinglogin.jsp

(ii) 	 Enter 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code 
and generate OTP.

(iii) 	Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and 
click on login.

(iv) 	On successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page.

(v) 	 Click on the Company name or e-Voting service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

(i) 	 Go to URL: www.cdslindia.com 

(ii) 	 Click on the icon “E-Voting”

(iii) 	Provide Demat Account Number and PAN No.

(iv) 	System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered 
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account.

(v) 	 After successful authentication, the user will be provided links for 
the respective ESP where the e-Voting is in progress.

(vi) 	Click on the Company name and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period.
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(viii) 	 Members holding shares in physical form will then directly 
reach the Company selection screen. However, members 
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily 
enter their login password in the new password field. 
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the 
demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 
that company opts for e-Voting through CDSL platform. 
It is strongly recommended not to share your password 
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential.

(ix) 	 For members holding shares in physical form, the details 
can be used only for e-Voting on the resolutions contained 
in this Notice.

(x) 	 Click on the EVSN: 250827022 for <Vardhman Acrylics 
Limited> on which you choose to vote.

xi) 	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/
NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. 
The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution 
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xii) 	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view 
the entire Resolution details.

(xiii)	  After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote 
on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. 
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to 
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly 
modify your vote.

(xiv) 	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xv) 	 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on 
“Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvi) 	 If a demat account holder has forgotten the login 
password then Enter the User ID and the image verification 
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 
prompted by the system.

(xvii) 	Additional facility for Non-Individual Shareholders and 
Custodians – Remote e-Voting only:

•	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required 
to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register 
themselves in the “Corporates” module.

•	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing 
the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

•	 After receiving the login details a compliance 
user should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance user would be able to 
link the account(s) for which they wish to vote.

•	 The list of accounts linked in the login will be 
mapped automatically & can be delink in case of 
any wrong mapping.

•	 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power 
of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour 
of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF 
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify 
the same.

•	 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are 
required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the 
Company at the email address viz; secretarial.lud@
vardhman.com, if they have voted from individual 
tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-Voting 
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

12. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS ATTENDING THE 
AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:
a)	  The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the 

day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for e-Voting at point no. 11.

b) 	 The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available 
where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above 
for e-Voting.

c) 	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through 
Laptops / iPads for better experience.

d) 	 Further, Members will be required to allow Camera and 
use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

e) 	 Please note that participants connecting from Mobile 
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due 
to fluctuation in their respective network. It is, therefore, 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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f) 	 Members who would like to express their views/ ask 
questions during the meeting may register themselves 
as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 
7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 
at secretarial.lud@vardhman.com . The Company reserves 
the right to restrict the number of questions and number 
of speakers, depending upon availability of time as 
appropriate for smooth conduct of AGM.

g) 	 Those members who have registered themselves as a 
speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ ask 
questions during the meeting.

h)	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the 
e-Voting available during the AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting 
through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of 
e-Voting during the meeting is available only to those 
shareholders attending the meeting.

13.	 PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE 
EMAIL ADDRESSES/ MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/ DEPOSITORIES:
a) 	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary 

details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) and duly filled relevant 
KYC forms by email to secretarial.lud@vardhman.com / 
mparase@mcsregistrars.com. 

b) 	 For Demat shareholders - please update your email id & 
mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP).

c) 	 For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your 
email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & 
joining virtual meetings through Depository.

	 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM 
& e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you may write 
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 
1800 21 09911.

	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by 
electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Senior Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai 
- 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or call on 1800 21 09911.

14. 	 M/s. Khanna Ashwani & Associates, Company Secretaries, have 
been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall 
upon the conclusion of e-Voting period, unblock the votes in 
presence of at least two witnesses not in employment of the 
Company and make a report of the votes cast in favor or against, 
if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

15.	  The Results of the resolutions passed at the AGM of the Company 
will be declared within 2 working days of the conclusion of 
AGM. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report 
shall be simultaneously placed on the Company’s website 
www.vardhman.com  and on the website of CDSL and will be 
communicated to the Stock Exchange.

16.	  The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated that 
with effect from April 1, 2024, dividend to shareholders holding 
shares in physical form shall be paid only through electronic 
mode. Such payment shall be made only if the folio is KYC 
compliant i.e. the details of PAN, Aadhar, choice of nomination, 
contact details, mobile number, complete bank details and 
specimen signatures are registered.

	 In case of non-updation of PAN or Choice of Nomination or 
Contact Details or Mobile Number or Bank Account Details or 
Specimen Signature in respect of physical folios, dividend / 
interest etc. shall be paid only upon furnishing all the aforesaid 
details in entirety.

	 Hence, the Members are requested to update their details with 
Company/MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, immediately, to 
avoid any delay in receipt of dividend.

17. 	 Dividend income is taxable in the hands of the Members 
and the Company is required to deduct tax at source (“TDS”) 
from dividend paid to the Members at prescribed rates in the 
Income Tax Act, 1961. In general, no tax will be deducted on 
payment of dividend to category of Members who are resident 
individuals (with valid PAN details updated in their folio/client ID 
records) and the total dividend amount payable to them does 
not exceed ` 5,000/-. Members not falling in the said category, 
can go through the detailed note with regard to applicability 
of tax rates for various other categories of Members and the 
documents that need to be submitted for nil or lower tax 
rate, which has been provided on the Company’s website at  
www.vardhman.com.   

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
Place: Ludhiana	  (Satin Katyal)
Date: 19.07.2025 	 Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE:
Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

(For Items No. 5 to 8)
ITEM NO. 5:

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on  
30th March, 2024 had appointed Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary (DIN: 
00307110), a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director, designated as 
Vice-Chairman of the Company with effect from 1st April, 2024. On the 
basis of the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, the Board had approved to pay him remuneration by 
way of commission equal to 2% of the Net Profits of the Company. 
His appointment and remuneration was approved by the Members 
of the Company through Postal Ballot on 18th May, 2024.

As per Regulation 17(6)(ca) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) 2015, approval of Members by special resolution is 
required to be obtained every year, in case the annual remuneration 
payable to a single non-executive director exceeds fifty per cent of 
the total annual remuneration payable to all non-executive directors. 
The payment of remuneration for FY 2025-26 to Mr. Bal Krishan 
Choudhary shall exceed the limit of fifty per cent of the total annual 
remuneration payable to all Non-Executive Directors. As such, the 
said payment of Commission requires approval of Members by way 
of Special Resolution. The Board of Directors recommends the Special 
Resolution as set out at item no. 5 of the Notice for approval of the 
Members. Accordingly, your approval is solicited..

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST:
Except Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary, being interested Director, none 
of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their 
relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolution set out at item no. 5 of the Notice.

ITEM NO. 6:

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17 (1A) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, w.e.f. 
April 1, 2019, approval of shareholders is required by way of a Special 
Resolution for continuing the directorship of any non-executive 
director who has attained the age of 75 years. Accordingly, for 
continuation of directorship of Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary who 
is going to attain the age of 75 years on 27th June, 2026, a Special 
Resolution is required to be passed by the Members of the Company.

Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary is a Bachelor of Science from Panjab 
University, Chandigarh and is an MBA (Gold Medalist) from Jodhpur 
University, Jodhpur. He is having a rich and varied experience of more 

than 50 years in Chemical, Textile and Steel Industry. He has been 
associated with the Company since its inception, leading the team 
responsible for setting - up of the Acrylic Fibre Plant of the Company 
at Jhagadia. He was instrumental in negotiating the technology 
for the plant and finalizing its location. In August 1999, he became 
President & Executive Director of the Company and has been its 
Managing Director since May, 2008.

Now, considering his vast and rich experience, the Board of Directors 
recommends the Special Resolution as set out at item no. 6 of the 
Notice for approval of the Members. Accordingly, your approval 
is solicited.

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST:
Except Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary, being the interested Director, none 
of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their 
relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolution set out at item no. 6 of the Notice.

ITEM NO. 7: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 148 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Cost 
Audit is required to be conducted in respect of the Cost Accounts 
maintained by the Company. Upon the recommendations of Audit 
Committee, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 30th April, 
2025, re-appointed Mr. R.A. Mehta as Cost Auditor of the Company 
to conduct Cost Audit for Financial Year ending 31st March, 2026, at a 
remuneration of ` 50,000/- plus applicable taxes.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
and other applicable provisions, the remuneration payable to the 
Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. 

Accordingly, consent of the Members is solicited for passing an 
Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 7 of the Notice for ratification 
of payment of remuneration as stated above to the Cost Auditors for 
the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2026. The Board recommends 
the Ordinary Resolution as set out at item no. 7 of the Notice for 
approval of the Members.  Accordingly, your approval is solicited.

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST: 
None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ 
their relatives are concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in 
the resolution set out at item no. 7 of the Notice.
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ITEM NO. 8: 

Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), inter alia, 
provides that with effect from 1st April 2025, every listed company is 
required to appoint a Practicing Company Secretary for not more than 
one term of five consecutive years or a firm of Practicing Company 
Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors for not more than two terms of five 
consecutive years, with the approval of the members at its Annual 
General Meeting (“AGM”) and such Secretarial Auditors(s) must be a 
peer reviewed company secretary and should not have incurred any 
of the disqualifications as specified under the Listing Regulations. 

In compliance with the abovesaid Listing Regulations, the Board of 
Directors of your Company, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s. Ashok K Singla & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of 
the Company for a term of five (5) consecutive years i.e. from financial 
year 2025-26 to 2029-30 at a fees of H 35,000/- per annum, plus out-
of-pocket expenses and applicable taxes.

M/s Ashok K Singla & Associates is led by Mr. Ashok Singla, a Fellow 
Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India with over 40 
years of experience. The firm has experience in dealing with matters 
relating to Company Law, Secretarial & Management Advisory 

Information pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS–2), regarding the Directors retiring by rotation/seeking 
appointment/ re-appointment in the Annual General Meeting.

Name of the Director Mrs. Suchita Jain Mr. Vivek Gupta
Date of Birth 20.03.1968 13.04.1967
Age (in years) 57 58
Date of First Appointment 20.10.2020 01.11.2023
Number of Meetings of the Board  
attended during the FY 2024-25

1 4

Expertise in specific functional area Business Executive having experience of 
more than 32 years in Textile Industry.

Rich experience of more than 32 years in 
dealing with financial and commercial matters.

Qualification M. Com Bachelor of Engineering (Hons.), MBA
Directorships in Other  Companies 
 as on 31st March, 2025.

LISTED COMPANIES:
•	 Vardhman Special Steels Limited
•	 Vardhman Holdings Limited
•	 Vardhman Textiles Limited
UNLISTED COMPANIES:
•	 VTL Investments Limited
•	 Santon Finance & Investment Company 

Limited
•	 Flamingo Finance & Investment 

Company Limited
•	 Ramaniya Finance & Investment 

Company Limited
•	 Mahavir Spinning Mills Private Limited
•	 Devakar Investment & Trading Company 

Private Limited

Nil

Services, Legal Due Diligence, Mergers and Acquisitions, Listing 
Regulations etc. The firm is providing consultation services to many 
listed and unlisted companies in India on Company Law and various 
legal matters. Apart therefrom, the firm is also handling assignments 
relating to Public Issues and Rights Issues.

The appointment of M/s. Ashok K Singla has been made taking into 
consideration factors such as technical skills, independence, industry 
experience, expertise and quality of audit practices.

M/s. Ashok K Singla & Associates has consented to their appointment 
as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company and have confirmed that 
they fulfill the criteria as specified in Clause (a) of regulation 24A (1A) 
of the Listing Regulations and holds a valid peer review certificate 
and have not incurred any of disqualifications as specified under 
Listing Regulations.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution as 
set out at item no. 8 of the Notice for approval of the Members. 
Accordingly, your approval is solicited.

MEMORANDUM OF INTEREST: 
None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ 
their relatives are concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in 
the resolution set out at item no. 8 of the Notice.
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Name of the Director Mrs. Suchita Jain Mr. Vivek Gupta
Chairperson/Member of Committees of Other  
Companies as on 31st March, 2025.

LISTED COMPANIES:

Vardhman Holdings Limited:
•	 	Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee (Chairperson)
Vardhman Textiles Limited:
•	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

(Member)

Risk Management Committee 
(Member)

•	 ��Corporate Social Responsibility
     Committee (Member)

•	 Environment, Social and Governance 
Committee (Member)

UNLISTED COMPANIES:

Santon Finance and Investment 
Company Limited:

•	 Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee (Member)

•	 Audit Committee (Member)

Flamingo Finance and Investment
Company Limited and Ramaniya 
Finance and Investment Company 
Limited:
•	 Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (Member)
•	 Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee (Member)
•	 Audit Committee (Member)
•	 Risk Management Committee 

(Member)
•	 Asset Liability Management 

Committee (Member)

VTL Investments Limited:

•	 Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (Chairperson)

•	 Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee (Chairperson)

•	 Audit Committee (Chairperson)
•	 Risk Management Committee 

(Chairperson)
•	 Asset Liability Management 

Committee (Chairperson)

Nil

Listed entity from which the Director resigned in last 3 years Nil Nil

Skills and capabilities required by Independent Directors for  
the role and manner in which such requirements are met.

N.A. N.A.

Shareholding in the Company - -

Relationship with other Director(s)/ KMP Mrs. Suchita Jain is the daughter of 
Mr. Shri Paul Oswal and spouse of 
Mr. Sachit Jain.

Not related to any Director/ KMP.
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Directors’ Report
Dear Members, 	

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting their 35th Annual Report of the business and operations of the Company along 
with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

1.	 FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
  	 The financial performance of your Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is as under: 

(` in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24

Revenue from operations (Net) 28,156.53 29,747.87

Other Income 1,561.13 1,402.72

Profit before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) 1,929.99 2,726.73

Interest and Financial expenses 24.91 28.67

Profit before Depreciation and Tax (PBDT) 1,905.08 2,698.06

Depreciation 300.13 563.00

Profit before Tax (PBT) 1604.95 2,135.06

Provision for Tax - Current 159.63 406.37

- Deferred Tax (Net of Adjustment) 263.18 (24.87)

- Total tax expenses 422.81 381.50

Profit after tax (PAT) 1,182.14 1,753.56

Other Comprehensive Income (7.00) 17.78

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 1,175.14 1,771.34

Earnings per share (`)

 - Basic 1.47 2.18

 - Diluted 1.47 2.18

2. 	� MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS 
REPORT:

	 Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under 
review as stipulated under Regulation 34(2) (e) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, is presented as under:

A.	 ACRYLIC FIBER INDUSTRY - GLOBAL AND INDIAN 
PERSPECTIVE:

	 Global acrylic fiber consumption continues to suffer. 
Global consumption of acrylic fiber is estimated to have 
dropped by about 8 to 10% in CY 2024 over the previous 
year. Main reasons for this situation seem to be climate 
change leading to change in buyer preferences and geo-
political events leading to reduction in demand.

	 Acrylic fiber industry’s overcapacity challenge has only 
aggravated. Addition of substantial new capacity in 2024 
in China with plans of further expansion has only added 

to the woes of industry. Increasing surplus capacity since 
last few years is prompting some countries to continue to 
dump acrylic fiber at very low prices in India where acrylic 
fiber consumption trend is still better than rest of the world.

	 Acrylic fiber consumption in India is estimated to have 
dropped by 5 to 7% in 2024-25 over previous year. Despite 
the drop, consumption trend in India can be considered to 
be better than rest of the world due to various domestic 
reasons that support its consumption. However, Indian 
acrylic fiber industry is facing squeezed margins due to 
low priced imports.

	 Performance of Indian AF producers in 2024-25 was 
affected mainly due to low priced imports from Asian and 
Latin American countries. This resulted in loss of business 
volume as well as margins. Your company could not utilise 
its full capacity due to loss of business volume which has 
also led to higher manufacturing costs.
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	 Major raw material of acrylic fiber is Acrylonitrile. 
Indian consumers of Acrylonitrile are dependent upon 
imports. Acrylonitrile is a crude oil derivative. Therefore, 
Acrylonitrile cost in India is affected by fluctuations in 
crude oil, demand supply of its raw materials, geo-political 
events and exchange rate fluctuation as well. During the 
year 2024-25, Acrylonitrile prices have generally been 
on decline having lost about 15% during the year. New 
capacity addition in Asia coupled with weak demand 
from derivatives of Acrylonitrile helped in Acrylonitrile 
prices not showing high volatility during the year. 
Availability of Acrylonitrile was better during the year due 
to subdued demand from its derivatives as well as due to 
new capacity addition in China.

	 B.	� FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND REVIEW OF 
OPERATIONS:

		  •	 PRODUCTION & SALES REVIEW:

	 Your Company has achieved a turnover of  
C 28,156.53 lakhs against a turnover of C 29,747.87 
lakhs in the previous year. The Company 
earned Profit before depreciation, interest and 
tax of C 1,929.99 lakhs as against C 2,726.73 
lakhs in the previous year. After providing for 
depreciation of C 300.13 lakhs (previous year  
C 563.00 lakhs) and provision for current tax of  
C159.63 lakhs (previous year C 406.37 lakhs), 
deferred tax of C 263.18 lakhs (previous year C 

(24.87) lakhs), Profit after Tax after considering Other 
Comprehensive Income of the Company is C 1,175.14 
lakhs as against C 1,771.34 lakhs in the previous year.

	 The balance available for appropriation after 
adding balance in surplus account is C 10,491.22 
lakhs. Out of this, a sum of C 1,607.29 lakhs has been 
utilised towards dividend and balance of C 8,883.93 
lakhs is proposed to be carried as surplus to the 
Balance sheet.

		  RESOURCE UTILIZATION:
		  a)	 Fixed Assets:

	 The gross fixed assets (including work in- progress) as 
at March 31, 2025 were C  9,148.30 lakhs as compared to  
C 8,748.37 lakhs in the previous year.

		  b)	 Current Assets:

	 The current assets as on March 31, 2025 were  
C 22,411.51 lakhs as against C 18,073.16 lakhs in 
theprevious year. Inventory level was at C 8,089.04 
lakhs as against C 7,495.39 lakhs in the previous year.

FINANCIAL CONDITIONS & LIQUIDITY:

	 Management believes that the Company’s liquidity 
and capital resources should be sufficient to meet its 
expected working capital needs and other anticipated 
cash requirements. The position of liquidity and capital 
resources of the Company is given below:-

(C In lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24

Cash & cash equivalents:

Beginning of the year 79.09 65.69

End of the year 76.96 79.09

Net cash provided/ (used) by:

Operating Activities 2,614.53 737.55

Investing Activities (907.89) 1,226.10

Financial Activities (1,708.77) (1,950.25)

	 C.	 BUSINESS OUTLOOK

	 Major economic parameters such as interest rate, inflation 
and unemployment displayed moderation during the 
year in larger parts of world. This augurs well for recovery 
in economic activity which will support consumer 
discretionary spending on items including textiles.

	 Indian GDP growth rate is expected to sustain momentum 
in 2025-26. Forecast of normal to above normal monsoon 
is likely to support acrylic fiber consumption in the 
country. It is expected that demand for acrylic fiber 
will be close to normal during the year. However, there 
can be challenges for Indian acrylic fiber producers in 
domestic market if low priced imports of acrylic fiber 
in the country are not checked and more foreign sellers 
try to enter Indian market due to protective mechanism 
implemented by few countries.

	 China has added substantial new capacity of Acrylonitrile 
during the year. More additions are planned in coming 
years. Entire capacity addition in world has taken place in 
China alone which has made China a dominant player in 
Acrylonitrile market.

	 China is expected to add some more capacity of acrylic 
fiber in coming year. Some acrylic fiber producers in 
the region have cut back on operating rate. However, 
as global acrylic fiber consumption is not expected to 
increase, competition amongst acrylic fiber producers is 
likely to increase and keep margins of producers under 
pressure for some more time.
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	 D.	 MAJOR RISK AND AREA OF CONCERN

	 Being a crude oil derivative, elevated rates of crude oil 
can adversely impact profitability and even demand 
of acrylic fiber in longer term. Climate change leading 
to changing weather patterns and general rise in 
temperatures globally is likely to result in decline of 
acrylic fiber consumption. Substitution of acrylic fiber  
by cheaper, though less effective fibers, is likely to get 
accelerated if price difference between acrylic fiber and 
such other fibers were to increase much. Specifically, for 
India, continued export of low priced acrylic fiber to India 
remains the major concern. Recent imposition of tariffs 
and reciprocal tariffs on few countries and a likely similar 
action against Indian exports has created uncertainty 
in trade. As of now, it is difficult to forecast its impact 
on acrylic Fiber trade but seems that higher tariffs and 
reciprocal tariffs can cause trade diversions and more 
focus of exporters on India. An end to ongoing geo-
political conflicts, when that happens, and normalization 
of transit thru’ Suez canal might bring much needed relief 
to global trade and economies.  

	 E.	� INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR 
ADEQUACY:

	 The Company reviews its Systems and Processes 
periodically to assess their robustness and sufficiency in 
view of business requirements, best industrial practices, 
corporate governance, statutory compliances, controls 
and audit purpose. A detailed and well-structured Internal 
Audit is carried out to identify practices for review by 
senior management where Company can possibly make 
systems more aligned with changing needs. Company 
places a great deal of emphasis on recommendations 
of Internal and Statutory Auditors which are seen as an 
opportunity to review and improve. Company has been 
investing in ERP to make the operations more system 
driven besides many other likely benefits.

	 F.	 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

	 Your Company is fully committed to all statutory 
compliances and following laid down practices, principles 
and accounting standards. Adequate internal controls thru 
ERP and approval systems are exercised to meet all of our 
obligations in time. Compliance to statutory requirements 
is monitored regularly. External independent agencies are 
engaged to update our system to meet latest regulations 
and align with best industry practices are engaged 
whenever a need is recognised. No reportable material 
weakness in the design or operation was observed  
during the year.

	 G.	� MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN 
RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

	 Health and safety of people working inside factory has 
always been of utmost importance to the management 
of your Company. Regular health check-up of entire 
plant team is carried out to ascertain their fitness and to 
identify areas requiring attention, if any. Regular training 
programmes by inhouse experts as well as by outside 
agencies are conducted to learn about techniques to 
improve personnel safety, safety of fellow employees and 
equipment are carried out. No reportable events related 
to health and safety took place in plant during the year.

	 Development and Training of team has always been a 
focus area of management as the production deployed 
in the plant is complex. Team members are encouraged 
to and participate in group activities and well-structured 
programmes aimed at honing their skills, building their 
knowledge and finding solutions to problems together 
and training of younger team members. During the year 
there was industrial peace and harmony in the company. 
The Company employed on average 318 persons on the 
rolls of the company.

	 H. 	 SUMMARY OF KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24 % 
change

Debtors Turnover 
Ratio (Days)

16.21 18.2 -10.93

Inventory Turnover 
(Days)

101.11 97.1 4.13

Current Ratio (Times) 2.25 2.33 -3.43

Debt Equity Ratio 
(Times)1

0.001 0.005 -80

Interest Coverage 
Ratio (Times)2

60.86 82.43 -26.17

EBIDTA Margin (%)2 6.85 9.17 -25.30

Net Profit Margin 
(%)2

4.2 5.89 -28.69

Return on Net 
Worth(%)2

4.95 7.22 -31.44

		  1. 	� The decrease is mainly on account of lower utilization of 
cash credit limit.

		  2. 	� The decrease is mainly on account of lower earnings on 
account of market conditions.

3.	 DIVIDEND:
   	 The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 30th April, 2025 

has recommended dividend of H 1.50 /- per share on the fully 
paid-up Equity Shares of the Company.
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4. 	 INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF):
     	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 and 125 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, read with IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer 
and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules’), all unpaid or unclaimed 
dividends are required to be transferred by the Company to the 
IEPF established by the Central Government after the completion 
of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend 
Account of the Company. The unclaimed or unpaid dividend 
relating to the Financial Year 2017-18 is due for remittance in 
the month of November, 2025 to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund established by the Central Government.

     	 Further, according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which 
dividend has not been paid or claimed by shareholders for 
seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the 
IEPF Authority. The Company has sent notice to all shareholders 
whose shares are due to be transferred to the IEPF Authority and 
has also published requisite advertisement in the newspapers 
in this regard.

	 The details of these shares are also provided on the website of 
the Company at www.vardhman.com.

5. 	 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT:
	 As your Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or 

joint venture Company, therefore, the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013 and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 110, 111, 112 
in relation to consolidation of accounts do not apply.

6. 	� SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES:

	 The Company does not have any subsidiary/ material subsidiary, 
associate or joint venture Company.

	 Further, during the year, no company have become or ceased 
to be subsidiary, joint venture or associate of the Company.

7.	  DIRECTORS:
	 Liable to retire by rotation: In accordance with the provisions 

of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. Suchita Jain 
& Mr. Vivek Gupta, Directors of the Company, retires by rotation 
at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible, offers themselves for re-appointment. The 
Board recommended their appointment for the consideration 
of the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting.

	 Appointment of Directors: During the year under review, 
Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary was appointed as an Additional 
Director (Non-Executive Non-Independent) on the Board of 
the Company with effect from 1st April, 2024. His appointment 

was further approved by the Members of the Company vide 
their resolution passed through Postal Ballot on 18th May, 2024.

	 Declaration by Independent Directors:

	 The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the 
Board that they fulfill all the requirements as stipulated in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to 
be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules thereof.

	 Your Board confirms that in its opinion the Independent 
Directors possess the requisite integrity, experience, expertise, 
proficiency and qualifications. All the Independent Directors 
on the Board of the Company are registered with the Indian 
Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar, Gurgaon (IICA) as 
notified by the Central Government under Section 150(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and shall undergo online proficiency 
self-assessment test, if applicable, within the time prescribed 
by the IICA.

	 Familiarization Programmes for Board Members:

	 Your Company has formulated Familiarization Programme for 
all the Board members in accordance with Regulation 25 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and the Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 
2013 which provides that the Company shall familiarize the 
Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of Industry in which 
the Company operates, business model of the Company etc. 
through various programs.

	 The Familiarization Programme for Board members may be 
accessed on the Company’s website at the link: https://www.
vardhman.com/Document/Report/Company%20Information/
Policies/Vardhman%20Acrylics%20Ltd/Familisation_program_
for_Board_Members.pdf

	 Annual Evaluation of the Board Performance:

	 The Meeting of Independent Directors of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2024-25 was held on 20th March, 2025 to evaluate 
the performance of the Non-Independent Directors, Chairman 
of the Company and the Board as a whole.

	 The evaluation was done by way of discussions on the 
performance of the Non- Independent Directors, Chairman 
and Board as a whole.

	 A policy on the performance evaluation of Independent 
Directors, Board, Committees and other individual Directors 
which includes criteria for performance evaluation of non-
executive directors and executive directors has been formulated 
by the Company.
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8. 	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:
	 In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy of the Company has been duly approved 
and adopted by the Board pursuant to recommendations of	
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company 
and may be accessed on the website of the Company at 
the link https://www.vardhman.com/Document/Report/
Company%20Information/Policies/Vardhman%20Acrylics%20
Ltd/Nomination_and_Remuneration_Policy.pdf. 

	 As mandated by proviso to Section 178(4) of the Companies Act, 
2013, salient features of Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
are as under:

a)	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors 
and who may be appointed in Senior Management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down and recommending 
to the Board their appointment and removal.

b)	 Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a Director and 
evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and experience 
on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare 
a description of the role and capabilities required of an 
independent director.

c)	 Recommending to the Board, policy relating to 
remuneration of Directors (Whole time Directors, 
Executive Directors etc.), Key Managerial Personnel and 
other employees while ensuring the following:

i.	 That the level and composition of remuneration 
is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate directors of the quality required to run the 
company successfully.

ii.	 That relationship of remuneration to 
performance is clear and meets appropriate 
performance benchmarks.

iii.	 That remuneration to directors, key managerial 
personnel and senior management involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting 
short and long term performance objectives 
appropriate of the working of the Company and 
its goals.

d)	 Formulating the criteria for evaluating performance of 
Board and all the Directors.

e)	 Devising a policy on diversification of Board.

f)	 Determining whether to extend or continue the 
term of appointment of the independent director on 
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of 
independent directors.

g)	 Recommending to the Board remuneration payable to 
Senior Management

9. 	 KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP): 
	 In compliance with the provisions of Section 203 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, following are the KMPs of the Company 
as on 31st March, 2025:

Sr. 
No. Name Designation

1. Vivek Gupta Whole time Director

2. Raish Shaikh Chief Financial Officer

3. Satin Katyal Company Secretary

10.	 NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS: 		
	 During the year under review, the Board met four (4) times and 

the intervening gap between any two meetings was within the 
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The details 
of Board Meeting are set out in Corporate Governance Report 
which forms part of this Annual Report. 

11. 	 AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT: 
	 Statutory Auditors: 

	 At the 32nd Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 
2022, M/s. SCV & CO. LLP. (Formerly S.C. Vasudeva & Co.), 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration no. 000235N/ 
N500089) were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a second term of five (5) consecutive years starting 
from the conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of 37th Annual General Meeting. 

	 Further, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have submitted 
Auditors’ Report on the accounts of the Company for the 
accounting year ended 31st March, 2025.

	 This Auditors’ Report is self-explanatory and requires 
no comments.

	 Secretarial Auditor: 

	 M/s. Ashok K Singla & Associates, Company Secretary in Practice, 
were appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company by the 
Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on  
4th May, 2024 for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial 
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Auditors of the Company have submitted their Report in Form 
No. MR-3 as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. This Report is 
self-explanatory and requires no comments. The Report forms 
part of this report as Annexure I.

	 Further, pursuant to the amended provisions of Regulation 24A 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
(“LODR”) Regulations, 2015 and Section 204 of the Act read with 
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the 
Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
have approved and recommended the appointment of 
M/s. Ashok K Singla & Associates, Peer Reviewed Company 
Secretary in Practice (CP No. 1942) as Secretarial Auditors of 
the Company for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years from 
the FY 2025-26 to 2029-30, for approval of the Members at 
ensuing AGM of the Company. Brief resume and other details 
of M/s. Ashok K Singla & Associates, Company Secretaries in 
Practice, are separately disclosed in the Notice of ensuing AGM.

	 M/s. Ashok K Singla & Associates have given their consent to 
act as Secretarial Auditors of the Company and confirmed that 
their aforesaid appointment (if made) would be within the 
prescribed limits under the Act & Rules made thereunder and 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations. They have also confirmed that they 
are not disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in 
terms of provisions of the Act & Rules made thereunder and 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 

	 Cost Auditor: 

	 The Company is maintaining the Cost Records, as specified by 
the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

	 The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. R.A. Mehta, Practising 
Cost Accountant, as the Cost Auditor of the Company to 
conduct Cost Audit of the Accounts for the financial year 2025-
26. However, as per provisions of Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 
2014, the remuneration to be paid to the Cost Auditor is subject 
to ratification by Members at the Annual General Meeting. 
Accordingly, the remuneration to be paid to Mr. R.A. Mehta, 
Practising Cost Accountant, for financial year 2025-26 is placed 
for ratification by the Members.

12. 	 AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
	 Composition of Audit Committee: 

	 The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Directors 
i.e. Mr. Anil Kumar, Ms. Parakh Oswal and Mr. Sanjeev Jain, 
Independent Directors. Mr. Anil Kumar is the Chairman of the 

Committee and Company Secretary of the Company is the 
Secretary of the Committee. All the recommendations made 
by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 

	 Apart from the Audit Committee, the Company has also 
constituted other Board level Committees as mandated by 
applicable laws. Details of the Committees, along with their 
composition, charters and meetings held during the year, are 
provided in the ‘Corporate Governance Report’, which forms a 
part of this Report. Further, during the FY 2024-25, the Board 
has accepted all the recommendations of its Committees.          

13. 	 VIGIL MECHANISM: 
	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, the Company has established a “Vigil Mechanism” 
incorporating Whistle Blower Policy in terms of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for 
employees and Directors of the Company, for expressing the 
genuine concerns of unethical behavior, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of the codes of conduct by way of direct 
access to the Chairman/ Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

	 The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against 
victimization of employees and Directors who express 
their concerns. 

	 The Policy on Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy as 
approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at the link: https://www.vardhman.com/Document/
Report/Company%20Information/Policies/Vardhman%20
Acrylics%20Ltd/Vigil_Mechanism_Policy.pdf 

  	 14. 	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
	 The Company has in place a system of Corporate Governance. 

Corporate Governance is about maximizing shareholder value 
legally, ethically and sustainably. A separate report on Corporate 
Governance forming part of the Annual Report of the Company 
is annexed hereto. A certificate from the Practising Company 
Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated under Corporate Governance 
Clauses of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed to the report on 
Corporate Governance. 

15. 	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 
	 Vision & core areas of CSR: Your Company is committed to 

and fully aware of its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the 
guidelines in respect of which were more clearly laid down 
in the Companies Act, 2013. The Company’s vision on CSR 
is that the Company being a responsible Corporate Citizen 
would continue to make a serious endeavor for a quality value 
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addition and constructive contribution in building a healthy 
and better society through its CSR related initiatives and focus 
on education, environment, health care and other social causes. 

	 CSR Policy: The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy 
of the Company indicating the activities to be undertaken by 
the Company, as approved by the Board, may be accessed on 
the Company’s website at the link: https://www.vardhman.
com /D o cument /Rep or t /Company %20 Informat ion /
Policies/Vardhman%20Acrylics%20Ltd/Corporate_Social_
Responsibility_Policy.pdf

	 During the year, the Company has spent H 28.01 lakhs on 
CSR activities. 

	 The disclosures related to CSR activities pursuant to Section 
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 are annexed hereto and forms 
part of this report as Annexure II. 

16.  	RISK MANAGEMENT: 
	 The Risk Management Policy required to be formulated under 

the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been duly 
formulated and approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company. The aim of Risk Management Policy is to maximize 
opportunities in all activities and to minimize adversity. The 
policy includes identifying types of risks and its assessment, 
risk handling, monitoring and reporting, which in the opinion 
of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company. 

	 The Risk Management Policy may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at the link: https://www.vardhman.com/Document/
Report/Company%20Information/Policies/Vardhman%20
Acrylics%20Ltd/Risk_Management_Policy.pdf

17. 	� BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY 
REPORT (BRSR):

	 In compliance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, BRSR is available 
on the Company’s website at the link: https://www.vardhman.
com/Document/Report/Compliances/BRR/Vardhman%20
Acrylics%20Ltd/BRSR_2024-25.pdf

18.	 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS & ITS ADEQUACY:
	 The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements. During the year, such 
controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in 
the design or operation was observed.

	 A report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of 
sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, as 
given by the Statutory Auditors of the Company forms part 
of Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements as 
Annexure B.

19. 	� PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS 
MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:

	 All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the 
Company during the financial year with related parties were in 
the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 
The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related 
parties as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in specified form AOC-2 forms part of Directors’ Report 
as Annexure III.

	 The Policy on dealing with related party transactions as 
approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at the link: https://www.vardhman.com/Document/
Report/Company%20Information/Policies/Vardhman%20
Acrylics%20Ltd/Related_Party_Transactions_Policy.pdf 

20. 	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

	 Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given 
and securities provided along with the purpose for which the 
loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the 
recipient are provided in the financial statement (Please refer 
to Note 4, 5, 9 and 12 to the financial statements).

21. 	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO: 

   	 Energy conservation continues to be an area of major emphasis 
in our Company. Efforts are made to optimize the energy cost 
while carrying out the manufacturing operations. Particulars 
with respect to conservation of energy and other areas as per 
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are annexed hereto and 
forms part of this report as Annexure IV. 

22.  	ANNUAL RETURN: 
 	 In terms of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 

2013 the Annual Return of the Company is available on the 
website of the Company at the link: https://www.vardhman.
com/Investors/Compliances
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23.  	HUMAN RESOURCES /INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
	 Human resource is considered as the most valuable of all 

resources available to the Company. The Company continues 
to lay emphasis on building and sustaining an excellent 
organization climate based on human performance. The 
Management has been continuously endeavoring to build 
high performance culture on one hand and amiable work 
environment on the other hand.

	 During the year, the Company employed around 318 employees 
on permanent rolls.

24. 	 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED 
DISCLOSURES:

	 The disclosures in respect of managerial remuneration as required 
under Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, are annexed hereto and forms part of this report.

	 A statement showing the names and other particulars of 
the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits 
set out in Rule 5 (2) and 5 (3) of Companies (Appointment & 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed 
hereto and forms part of this report.

	 All the above details are provided in Annexure V.

	 In terms of section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company does not have any Subsidiary Company. Further, none 
of the Director of the Company has received any remuneration 
or commission from any Holding Company. 

25. 	 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 
REPORT:

	 No material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the Company occurred between the end of the 
financial year to which the financial statements relate and the 
date of this report.

26. 	 DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, the Board, hereby submits its responsibility Statement:

a.	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
Accounting Standards have been followed along with the 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

b.	 Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and 
applied consistently, and have made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for 
the year ended on 31st March, 2025;

c.	 Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d.	 The annual accounts have been prepared on a going 
concern basis;

e.	 The Internal financial controls have been laid down to be 
followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f.	 Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively.

27.	 GENERAL DISCLOSURES:
	 Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required 

in respect of the following items as there were no transactions 
on these items during the year under review:

1.	 Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of 
the Act.

2.	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, 
voting or otherwise.

3.	 Significant or material orders passed by the Regulators 
or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern 
status and Company’s operations in future.

4.	 Change in nature of Business of the Company.

5.	 No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit 
Committee or the Board.

6.	 There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

7. 	 There was no instance of one time settlement with any 
Bank or Financial Institution.

	 Further, your Directors state that the Company has 
complied with the provisions relating to constitution 
of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
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Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 & there was no 
case filed under the said Act and applicable Secretarial 
Standards with respect to Meetings of the Board of 
Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

	 In addition to this, all the policies as required under the 
Act or the SEBI LODR Regulations have been formulated 
by the Company and are available on the website of the 
Company, links whereof are provided in the ‘Corporate 
Governance Report’, which forms part of this report.

28. 	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
	 Your Directors are pleased to place on record their sincere 

gratitude to the Government, Bankers, Business Constituents 
and Shareholders for their continued and valuable co-
operation and support to the Company and look forward to 
their continued support and co-operation in future too.

	 They also take this opportunity to express their deep 
appreciation for the devoted and sincere services rendered by 
the employees at all levels of the operations of the Company 
during the year.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

Sd/- 
Place: Ludhiana 	 (S.P. Oswal) 
Dated: 30th April, 2025 	 Chairman 
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Annexure 
No. Particulars

I Secretarial Audit Report in form no. MR-3 for FY 2024-25.

II CSR Activities – Annual Report FY 2024-25

III Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Act, in Form AOC – 2.

IV Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo.

V Particulars of employees and related disclosures
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ANNEXURE-I

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Vardhman Acrylics Limited,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Vardhman Acrylics Limited, (hereinafter called 
the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts 
/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended 
on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the 
provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 
made thereunder;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the 
rules made thereunder;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws 
framed thereunder;

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015;

(b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; - 
Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period;

(e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; - 
Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period;

(f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 
- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period;

(g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of 
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; - Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit period and

(i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback 
of Securities) Regulations, 2018. -Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit period.
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	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

(i) 	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) 	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the 
Company with National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited;

	 During the period under review, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of the abovementioned 
Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board 
of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried 
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ 
views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes if any.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes 
in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has 
not any specific events / actions which have a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

For Ashok K Singla & Associates,
Company Secretaries,

Sd/-
Ashok Singla

Proprietor
 Membership No. 2004

Date: 30th April, 2025 	 Certificate of Practice No. 1942
Place: Ludhiana 	 UDIN: F002004G000234841

List of Labour Laws and Environmental Laws which have 
been verified during Audit Period

List of Labour Laws

The Factories Act, 1948
The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
The Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1972
The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970
The Apprentices Act, 1961

List of Environmental Laws

The Environmental (Protection) Act, 1986
The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991
The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
The Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary 
Movements) Rules, 2008
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ANNEXURE-A

To
The Members
Vardhman Acrylics Limited,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 
We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of the events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. 
Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which 
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ashok K Singla & Associates,
Company Secretaries,

Sd/-
Ashok Singla

Proprietor
 Membership No. 2004

Date: 30th April, 2025 	 Certificate of Practice No. 1942
Place: Ludhiana 	 UDIN: F002004G000234841
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ANNEXURE-II
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.
	 Broad contours of CSR Policy of the Company are:-

1)	 Promotion of Education

2)	 Rural Development

3)	 Promoting Healthcare

4)	 Environment protection and Energy Conservation

5)	 Any other project/programme pertaining to activities listed in Schedule-VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl.
No. Name of Director Designation / Nature of 

Directorship
Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee held during the year

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during the year

1. Mr. Sachit Jain Chairman, Non-Independent,  
Non-Executive Director

2 0

2. Ms. Parakh Oswal Member, Independent, Non- 
Executive Director

2 2

3. Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary Member, Non-Independent,  
Non-Executive Director

2 2

3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR 
committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved 
by the board are disclosed on the website of the 
Company:

	 Link of Composition:- https://www.vardhman.com/Document/
Report/Company%20Information/Board/Vardhman%20
Acrylics%20Ltd/List_of_Committees_of_Directors.pdf

	 Link	 of	 Policy:-https://www.vardhman.com/Document/
Report/Company%20Information/Policies/Vardhman%20
Acrylics%20Ltd/Corporate_Social_Responsibility_Policy.pdf

	 Link of CSR Projects:- https://www.vardhman.com/Document/
Rep or t /Compl iances/Misce l lane ous/ Vardhman%20
Acrylics%20Ltd/CSR_Project_2025-26.pdf

4.	 Provide the Executive Summary along with web-
link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects 
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if 
applicable.

NA

5.	 (a) 	� Average net profit of the Company as per sub-
section (5) of Section 135 : H 2,250.45 lakhs

(b) 	 Two percent of average net profit of the Company 
as per sub-section (5) of Section 135: H 45.01 lakhs

(c)	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years: Nil

(d)  	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, 
if any: H 19.03 lakhs

(e) 	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]:  
H 25.98 lakhs

6.	 (a)	� Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing 
Project and other than Ongoing Project): H 28.01 lakhs

(b) 	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) 	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if 
applicable: NA

(d) 	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year 
[(a)+(b)+(c)]: H 28.01 lakhs
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(e) 	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year. 
(in `)

Amount Unspent (in `)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)

2024-25 Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

`28.01 lakhs Nil - - - -

(f) 	 Excess amount for set off, if any
Sl.
No. Particulars Amount (in D)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) ` 45.01 lakhs

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ` 28.01 lakhs

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] ` 2.03 lakhs*

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any -

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] ` 2.03 lakhs

*after adjusting surplus of ` 19.03 lakhs pertaining to previous financial years.

7.	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl.
No.

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s)

Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account under 
subsection (6) of Section 
135 (in `) 

Balance Amount in 
Unspent CSR Account 
under subsection (6)of 
Section 135 (in `)

Amount 
Spent in the 
Financial Year 
(in `)

Amount transferred to a Fund 
as specified under Schedule VII 
as per second proviso to sub-
section (5) of Section 135, if any

Amount emaining 
to be spent in 
succeeding 
Financial Years (in `)

Deficiency, 
if any

Amount (in `) Date of Transfer

1. 2023-24 Nil - Nil - - - -

2. 2022-23 Nil -  Nil - - - -

3. 2021-22 Nil - Nil - - - -

8.	 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount 
spent in the financial year:

	 Yes	           No

	 If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/acquired: NA

	 Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the 
financial year:

Sl. 
No.

Short particulars of the 
property or asset(s) [including 
complete address and location 
of the property]

Pincode of the 
property or 

asset(s)

Date of 
creation

Amount of CSR 
amount spent

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of 
the registered owner

CSR Registration 
Number, if Applicable

Name Registered 
address

NA

9.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 
135(5). NA

Sd/- Sd/-

Vivek Gupta Sachit Jain

(Whole time Director) (Chairman CSR Commitee)
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FORM NO. - AOC – 2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) 
of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

A.	 Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

	 There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2025, which were not at arm’s 
length basis.

B.	 Details of Material Contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the 
related party 
and nature of 
relationship

Nature of contracts/ 
arrangements/ 

transactions

Duration of 
the contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements 

or transactions 
including the value, 

if any:

Date(s) of approval 
by the Board, if any:

Amount paid as 
advances, if any:

Vardhman Textiles 
Limited (Holding 
Company)

Sale of Goods April 2024 –March 
2025

The related party 
transactions (RPTs) 
entered during the 
year were in the 
ordinary course of 
business and on arms 
length basis.
The value of 
transactions are as 
given in Note No. 
38 to the Financial 
Statements.

N.A Nil

Purchase of Goods

Purchase of MEIS/ 
RODTEP license

Reimbursement of 
Common Corporate 
Expenses

Reimbursement of 
expenses paid

Reimbursement of 
expenses received

ANNEXURE-III

By Order of the Board
For Vardhman Acrylics Limited

Sd/-
Date: 30th April, 2025	  S.P Oswal
Place: Ludhiana 		  Chairman
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ANNEXURE-IV
INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF COMPANIES 

(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025.

A.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
i.	 Steps taken for conservation of energy:

a)	 Replacement of the old inefficient Water Chiller (VAM 
machine) with a high-efficiency water chiller.

b)	 Replacement of the existing vacuum pump with a higher-
capacity vacuum pump to improve the efficiency of the 
solvent plant.

c)	 Partial replacement of conventional luminaires with 
energy-efficient LED lighting.

d)	 Replacement of old, inefficient pumps with new high-
efficiency pumps.

e)	 Application of specialized coatings on cooling 
tower pumps to enhance efficiency and reduce 
power consumption.

f)	 Replacement of outdated IE2 motors with energy-efficient 
IE3/IE4 motors.

ii.	 Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy:

	 Efforts are continuing to identify viable opportunities of using 
solar energy.

iii.	 Expenses incurred on energy conservation equipment:

	 The Company has incurred H 116.73 lakhs on different energy 
and utility saving projects.

B.	 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i.	 Efforts made towards technology absorption, adoption 

and innovation:

a)	 Engaged a reputed academic and research institution for 
study of our product for bringing improvements in our 
product quality.

b)	 Process parameters optimisation done resulting in 
improved product properties and better process stability.

c)	 Adoption of online process monitoring of moisture 
trend at shop floor, leading to improvement in quality, 
process stability.

d)	 Successfully developed indigenous manufacturer & 
supplier for imported filter media.

e)	 Plant scale trial conducted for cost effective treatment of 
waste water.

f)	 Installed automated sludge removal cum de-watering 
system for biological sludge.

ii.	 Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts:

a.	 Better Product quality.

b.	 Higher process reliability and stability.

c.	 Significant reduction in internal quality defect & rejection.

d.	 Cost effective treatment of waste water.

e.	 Reduction in solid waste generation.

iii.	 In case of imported technology, (imported during 
the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year), following information may be furnished: 
Not applicable

a)	  Technology imported – NIL.

b) 	 Year of import – NA.

c) 	 Has technology been fully absorbed – NA.

d) 	 If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, 
reasons therefore and future plans of action – NA.

iv.	 Expenditure on R&D:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Non –Recurring - 4.00

Percentage of turnover - 0.01%

C. 	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:-
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Foreign Exchange earned (FOB) 129.52 1.57

Foreign Exchange used (on 
accrual basis)

17,621.53 14,811.56
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ANNEXURE-V

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

A.	 DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

1.	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the Financial Year 
2024-25 and ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2024-25 are as under:

Sr. 
No. Name of Director/ KMP & Designation

Remuneration of 
Director/KMP

for Financial Year  
2024-25 (` In Lakhs)

% increase / 
decrease in 

Remuneration in 
the Financial Year 

2024-25

Ratio of 
remuneration of 

each Director/ 
KMP to median 

remuneration of 
employees

1. Shri Paul Oswal
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

- - -

2. Bal Krishan Choudhary*
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

18.88 - 3.57

3. Sachit Jain
Non-Executive Non - Independent Director

- - -

4. Suchita Jain
Non-Executive Non - Independent Director

- - -

5. Anil Kumar
Non-Executive Independent Director

3.10 -11.43 0.59

6. Bhooshan Lal Uppal
Non-Executive Independent Director

2.20 -31.25 0.42

7. Parakh Oswal
Non-Executive Independent Director

4.30 -8.51 0.81

8. Sanjeev Jain**
Non-Executive Independent Director

3.40 N.A. 0.64

9. Sandeep Kapur**
Non-Executive Independent Director

1.90 N.A. 0.36

10. Vivek Gupta
Whole Time Director

71.61 33.53 13.54

11. Raish Shaikh
Chief Financial Officer

17.23 16.66 3.26

12. Satin Katyal
Company Secretary

9.24 21.26 1.75

		  *The term of appointment of Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary as a Managing Director of the Company was completed on 31st March, 2024. Thereafter, he has 
been appointed as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 1st April, 2024.

		  **Mr. Sandeep Kapur and Mr. Sanjeev Jain were appointed as Independent Directors of the Company w.e.f. 1st August, 2023 and 1st November, 2023 
respectively.

2.	 The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the Financial Year was H 5.29 lakhs (previous year H 4.80 lakhs)

3.	 In the Financial Year, there was an increase of 10.21% in the median remuneration of employees.

4.	 There were 318 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025.

5.	 Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last Financial Year i.e.  
2024-25 was 6.74% whereas decrease in managerial remuneration for the same financial year was 46.70%. (The decrease in managerial 
remuneration was due to cessation of Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary as MD of the Company w.e.f. 1st April, 2024.)

6.	 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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B.	 DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:

1.	 Persons employed throughout the financial year, who were in receipt of remuneration which, in the aggregate, was not less than  
H 1,02,00,000/- per annum: Nil

2.	 Persons employed for a part of financial year, who were in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which in aggregate, 
was not less than H 8,50,000/- per month – Nil.

3.	 A statement showing names of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year is as follows:

Sr. No., Name, Age, Designation, Gross Remuneration (in Dlakhs p.a.), Nature of Employment, qualifications, Experience  
(in years), Date of Joining, Previous Employment and % of Equity Shares held as on 31st March, 2025.

1). Vivek Gupta, 58, Whole time Director, 71.61, Regular, Bachelor of Engineering Honours, MBA, 31, 07-11-2007, Xpro India Limited, Nil. 2). Ranbir 
Singh Yadav, 69, Chief General Manager, 55.46, Regular, B.Tech - Textiles, 45, 01-08-2021, Vardhman Textiles Limited, Nil. (Retired with effect from 
1st August, 2024) 3). Hitesh Bachubhai Patel, 44, Executive Vice-President, 40.69, Regular, Bachelor of Engineering (Chemical), Post Graduate 
Diploma in Environment and Supply Chain Management, 20, 11-06-2024, M/s. Atvantic Finechem Pvt. Ltd., Nil. 4.) Basudev Brijkishor Sharma, 
54, Vice-President, 28.69, Regular, B.Tech -Chemical, 31, 01-10-2008, Jubiliant Organosys Limited, Nil. 5). Mrinal Kanti Siddhanta, 56, Assistant 
Vice-President, 28.01, Regular, B.E-Textile, 30, 10/06/2004, Consolidated Fibres & Chemicals Ltd., Nil. 6). Jayesh Shantilal Gohil, 52, Assistant 
Vice-President, 22.84, Regular, Bachelor of Engineering - Mechanical, 28, 25-10-2010, Isagro Asia Agrochemicals Private Limited, Nil. 7.) Dinesh 
Gaur, 47, Chief Manager, 21.84, Regular, B.Tech, Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management (Marketing), 25, 17-07-2000, Vardhman Textiles 
Limited, Nil. 8.) Alpesh Hasmukhbhai Patel, 50, Chief Manager, 20.99, Regular, Diploma in Mechanical Engineering, Boiler Operation Engineer, 
30, 23-09-2013, Thermax Limited, Nil. 9.) Pragnesh Ganpatbhai Solanki, 48, Senior Manager, 20.55, Regular, M.E – Electrical, 20, 01-06-2020, 
Century Textiles & Industries Limited. Nil. 10.) Devendra Bhupatsinh Mangrola, 46, Senior Manager, 18.38, Regular, DIE, 24, 10-09-2007, Videocon 
Industries Limited, Nil.

Note: None of the abovementioned employees are related to any Director of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
This report on Corporate Governance forms part of the Annual Report. 
Corporate Governance refers to a combination of laws, regulations, 
procedures, implicit rules and good corporate practices that ensure 
that a Company meets its obligations to optimize shareholders’ 
value and fulfill its responsibilities to the community, customers, 
employees, Government and other segments of society. Your 
Company is committed on adopting the best practices of Corporate 
Governance as manifested in the Company’s functioning to achieve 
the business excellence by enhancing long-term shareholders’ 
value. Efficient conduct of the business of the Company through 
commitment to transparency and business ethics in discharging its 
corporate responsibilities is hallmark of the best practices followed by 
the Company. This report on Corporate Governance, besides being in 
compliance of the mandatory SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, gives an insight into the functioning 
of the Company.

1	 VARDHMAN GROUP’S PHILOSOPHY:
	• 	Continued expansion in areas “which we know best”.

	• 	Total customer focus in all operational areas.

	• 	Products to be of best available quality for premium 
market segments through TQM.

	• 	Zero defect implementation.

	• 	Integrated diversification/ product range expansion.

	• 	Global Orientation.

	• 	World class manufacturing facilities with most modern 
R&D and process technology.

	• 	Faith in individual potential and respect for human values.

	• 	Encouraging innovation for constant improvements to 
achieve excellence in all functional areas.

	• 	Accepting change as a way of life.

	• 	Appreciating our role as a responsible corporate citizen.

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS/ BOARD MEETINGS:
i. 	 Composition as on 31st March, 2025:

	 The Composition of Board and category of Directors are 
as follows:

Category Name of Directors

Promoter Directors #Shri Paul Oswal- Chairman
#�Sachit Jain- Non- Executive & 
Non- Independent Director

#�Suchita Jain- Non- Executive & 
Non- Independent Director

Executive Non-Independent 
Director

Vivek Gupta – Whole Time 
Director

Non - Executive Independent 
Directors

Anil Kumar
Parakh Oswal
Sanjeev Jain
Sandeep Kapur
Bhooshan Lal Uppal

Non- Executive Non- 
Independent Director

Bal Krishan Choudhary

	 Relationship Inter-se:
	 # Except Mr. Shri Paul Oswal, Mrs. Suchita Jain and Mr. Sachit Jain, 

none of the Directors of the Company is related to any other 
Director of the Company.

ii.	 Board Meetings:

	 During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Board met 4 times on the 
following dates:

	• 	04th May, 2024

	• 24th July, 2024

	• 25th  October, 2024

	• 18th January, 2025 
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III.	 Attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings during the year and at last Annual General Meeting of the Company 
and also the number of other Directorship/Chairmanship in Indian Public Limited Companies and names of other Listed 
Entities where the person is director and category of directorship therein are as follows:-

Name  of 
Director

No. of  
Board 

meetings 
attended

Attendance 
at  last AGM

Total no. of 
Directorships 

in other 
Companies

Names of 
other Listed 

Entities where  
the person is 

director

Category of 
Directorship 

in other listed 
entities

No.  of 
Committee 

memberships 
in  other 

Companies

Total no. 
of Board 

Chairmanship 
in other 

Companies

Total no. of 
Committee 

Chairmanship 
in other 

companies

Shri Paul Oswal 2 No 5 Vardhman 
Textiles Limited

Executive 
Director

3 2 3

Vardhman 
Holdings Limited

Executive 
Director

Suchita Jain 1 No 7 Vardhman 
Textiles Limited 

Executive 
Director

5 - 1

Vardhman 
Special Steels 

Limited

Non-Executive 
Director

Vardhman 
Holdings Limited

Non-Executive 
Director

Bal Krishan 
Choudhary

4 Yes 1 - - - - -

Sachit Jain 1 No 8 Vardhman 
Textiles Limited

Non –Executive 
Director

2 - -

Vardhman 
Holdings Limited

Non –Executive 
Director 

Vardhman 
Special Steels 

Limited

Executive 
Director  

Anil Kumar 4 Yes 2 Master Trust 
Limited

 Non–Executive 
Director

- - -

Bhooshan Lal Uppal 4 Yes - - - - - -

Parakh Oswal 4 No - - - - - -

Sandeep Kapur 4 No 5 Sportking India 
Limited

Non–Executive 
Director

5 - 2

Sanjeev Jain 4 Yes - - - - - -

Vivek Gupta 4 Yes - - - - - -

		  Video conferencing facility was provided to facilitate Directors travelling abroad or present at other locations to participate in the Board meetings. 
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3.	 BOARD COMMITTEES:
i. 	 Board Committees, their composition and terms of reference are provided as under:

NAME OF COMMITTEE COMPOSITION TERMS OF REFERENCE

Audit Committee Anil Kumar 
(Chairman)
Parakh Oswal
Sanjeev Jain

	• 	 The role of the Audit Committee is as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee

Bhooshan Lal Uppal 
(Chairman)
Shri Paul Oswal
Parakh Oswal

	• 	 The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as per Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

	• 	 Formulated and recommended Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

	• 	 The Nomination & Remuneration Policy includes policy on Director’s 
appointment and remuneration including the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and other 
matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee

Sachit Jain 
(Chairman)
Bal Krishan Choudhary
Parakh Oswal

	• 	 Formulated and recommended CSR Policy of the Company indicating CSR 
activities proposed to be undertaken by the Company pursuant to the 
provisions of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 read with CSR Rules, 
2014. The CSR policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: 
https://www.vardhman.com/Document/Report/Company%20Information/
Policies/Vardhman%20Acrylics%20Ltd/Corporate_Social_Responsibility_
Policy.pdf

	• 	 Recommends expenditure to be incurred for CSR activities/ project and 
ensures effective monitoring of CSR policy of the Company from time to 
time.

	• 	 The Annual Report on CSR activities undertaken by the Company forms part 
of the Board Report as Annexure II.

Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee

Sanjeev Jain 
(Chairman)
Parakh Oswal
Bal Krishan Choudhary

	• 	 The Committee reviews and ensures redressal of investor grievances.

	• 	 During the year, the Company has not received any complaint from any 
shareholder. As such, there is no complaint pending to be resolved.

Mr. Satin Katyal, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company is the Secretary of all Board Committees constituted under 
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.                     

ii.	 Meetings of Board Committees held during the year and Director’s attendance: 

Board Committees Audit CSR Nomination & 
Remuneration

Stakeholders 
Relationship

Meetings held 4 2 1 1

Shri Paul Oswal N.A. N.A. 0 N.A.

Sachit Jain N.A. 0 N.A. N.A.

Suchita Jain N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Bal Krishan Choudhary N.A. 2 N.A. 1

Bhooshan Lal Uppal N.A. N.A. 1 N.A.

Anil Kumar 4 N.A. N.A. N.A.

Parakh Oswal 4 2 1 1

Sanjeev Jain 4 N.A. N.A. 1

Sandeep Kapur N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Vivek Gupta N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

	 N.A. - Not a member of the Committee. 
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iii. 	 Meeting of Independent Directors:

	 A meeting of Independent Directors of the Company for 
the Financial Year 2024-25 was held on 20th March, 2025 to 
evaluate the performance of Non-Independent Directors of the 
Company, Chairman of the Company and the Board as a whole.

	 Performance Evaluation

	 The performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors 
of the Company, Chairman of the Company and the Board 
as a whole, was done by Independent Directors by way of 
discussions on their performance.

	 A policy on the performance evaluation of Independent 
Directors, Board, Committees and other Individual Directors 
which includes criteria for performance evaluation of non-
executive directors and executive directors has been formulated 
by the Company.

	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Listing 
Regulations and as per the Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy, the Board of Directors/ Independent Directors/ 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) (as applicable) 
had undertaken an evaluation of the Board’s own performance, 
the performance of its Committees and of all the individual 
Directors including the Chairman of the Board of Directors 
based on various parameters relating to roles, responsibilities 
and obligations of the Board, effectiveness of its functioning, 
contribution of Directors at meetings and the functioning of 
its Committees.

	 Familiarization programme for Independent Directors

	 The details of the Familiarisation Programme conducted for 
the Independent Directors of the Company are available on 
the Company’s website at the link: https://www.vardhman.
com/Document/Report/Company%20Information/Policies/
Vardhman%20Acrylics%20Ltd/Familisation_program_for_
Board_Members.pdf

iv. 	 Core Skills/ Expertise/ Competencies available with the 
Board:-

	 The Board comprises of highly qualified members who possess 
required skills, expertise and competence that allow them to 
make effective contributions to the Board and its Committees.

	 The table below summarizes the key attributes and skills matrix 
considered necessary for effective functioning of the Company 
and are currently available with Board:

Name of Director Area of Expertise 

Shri Paul Oswal Strategic Planning 
Leadership 
Operational Experience 
Industry Experience 
Financial Expertise 
Administrative Experience 

Sachit Jain Strategic Planning 
Leadership 
Operational Experience 
Industry Experience 
Financial Expertise 
Administrative Experience 

Suchita Jain Strategic Planning 
Leadership 
Industry Experience 
Financial Expertise 
Administrative Experience 

Bal Krishan Choudhary Strategic Planning 
Leadership 
Operational Experience 
Industry Experience 
Financial Expertise 
Administrative Experience 

Vivek Gupta Strategic Planning 
Leadership 
Operational Experience 
Industry Experience 
Financial Expertise 
Administrative Experience 

Anil Kumar Strategic Planning 
Leadership
Financial Expertise
Administrative Experience

Bhooshan Lal Uppal Strategic Planning
Leadership
Operational Experience
Industry Experience
Administrative Experience

Parakh Oswal Strategic Planning
Leadership
Administrative Experience

Sandeep Kapur Strategic Planning
Leadership
Administrative Experience

Sanjeev Jain Strategic Planning
Leadership
Administrative Experience
Financial Expertise
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4.	 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION:
i) 	 Executive Director:

	 The Company pays remuneration to the Executive Director as 
approved by the Board of Directors and the Members of the 
Company in the General Meeting.

	 A detail of remuneration paid to the Executive Director during 
the Year 2024-25 is as given below:

(H in Lakhs)

Name Vivek Gupta

Designation Whole-Time Director

Salary 27.50

Perquisites & Allowances 34.69

Retirement Benefit -

Commission 9.42

Performance Linked 
Incentive and criteria 
thereof

-

	 The tenure of office of Mr. Vivek Gupta is 5 (five) years from the 
date of his appointment and can be terminated by either party 
by giving three months’ notice in writing. There is no separate 
provision for the payment of Severance Fees.

ii)	 Non-Executive Directors:

	 Non-Executive Directors have not been paid any remuneration 
except sitting fees for attending Board and Committee Meetings.

	 The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees @ H 40,000/- 
per Board Meeting and @ H 30,000/-per Committee Meeting. 
The detail of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors 
during the Financial Year 2024-25 is given hereunder:

S.
NO. NAME OF DIRECTOR SITTING FEE (₹)

1. Parakh Oswal 4,30,000

2. Anil Kumar 3,10,000

3. Bhooshan Lal Uppal 2,20,000

4. Sanjeev Jain 3,40,000

5. Sandeep Kapur 1,90,000

	 Based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting 
held on 30th March, 2024 had approved the remuneration 
payable to Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary by way of commission @ 
2% of the Net Profits of the Company. Further, the Members of the 
Company vide its resolution dated 18th May, 2024 had approved 
the remuneration payable to Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary. The 
remuneration due to Mr. Choudhary for the year 2024-25 is  
H 18.88 lakhs.

5.	 PARTICULARS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE 
COMPANY AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2025:

NAME OF THE SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DESIGNATION

Mr. Hitesh Bachubhai Patel* Executive Vice-President & 
Operational Head

Mr. Raish Shaikh Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Satin Katyal Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer

*�During the year, Mr. Hitesh Bachubhai Patel had been elevated 
as Head of the Plant, designated as Executive Vice-President & 
Operational Head w.e.f 24th July, 2024.

		  *�During the year, Mr. Ranbir Singh Yadav, Chief General Manager- 
Operations, retired from the services of the Company w.e.f. 01st 
August, 2024.

6. 	 SHAREHOLDING DETAIL OF DIRECTORS AS ON 
31.03.2025:

	 The shareholding of the Directors in the Equity Share Capital of 
the Company is given as follows:

S.
NO. NAME OF DIRECTOR NUMBER OF SHARES HELD

1. Shri Paul Oswal 10

2. Sachit Jain 10

*No other director holds any share in the equity share capital of the 
Company.

7.	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
(i) 	 The details of Annual General Meeting & No. of Special Resolutions passed during last three financial years are as follows:

Meeting Day, Date and Time of the Meeting Venue No. of Special 
Resolutions

34th Annual General Meeting for 
financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

Thursday, 19th September, 2024 at 03:00 
p.m.

Through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ 
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)

3

33rd Annual General Meeting for 
financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

Saturday, 30th September, 2023 at 03:00 
p.m.

Through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ 
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)

1

32nd Annual General Meeting for 
financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 03:00 p.m. Through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ 
Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)

4
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(ii)	 Postal Ballot: 

	 During the year, the Members approved following matter by passing Special Resolution through Postal Ballot:

a)	 To appoint Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director designated as the Vice-Chairman of 
the Company.

	 The Board had appointed M/s Khanna Ashwani & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Scrutinizer to conduct the Postal Ballot 
process by voting through electronic means, in a fair and transparent manner. The details of the voting pattern is as follows:-

Resolution passed 
through postal ballot

Nature of 
Resolution

Votes in favour of the resolution Votes against the resolution Invalid votes

Number of 
members 
voted

Number 
of valid 
Votes cast 
(Shares)

Percentage 
of total 
number of 
valid votes 
cast

Number of 
members 
voted

Number 
of valid 
votes cast 
(Shares)

Percentage 
of total 
number of 
valid votes 
cast

Total number 
of members 
whose 
votes were 
declared 
invalid

Total 
number 
of invalid 
votes 
cast 
(Shares)

To appoint Mr. Bal 
Krishan Choudhary as 
a Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director 
designated as the 
Vice-Chairman of the 
Company.

Special 
Resolution

118 6,03,84,722 99.99 5 6,108 0.01 - -

Procedure for Postal Ballot: The postal ballot was carried 
out as per the provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Rules framed thereunder and read with the General Circular 
nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 
and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 
9/2023 dated September 25, 2023, issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs.

	 Further, the following resolutions are proposed to be passed 
through Postal Ballot in the FY 2025-26:

- 	 To re-appoint Mr. Anil Kumar as an Independent Director 
of the Company.

-	 To re-appoint Mr. Bhooshan Lal Uppal as an Independent 
Director of the Company.

- 	 To approve continuation of directorship of Mr. Anil Kumar 
as a Non-Executive Director of the Company.

-	 To enter into related party transactions.

8.	 DISCLOSURES:
i.	 There was no materially significant related party transaction that 

may have any potential conflict with interest of the Company 
at large. The Policy on dealing with related party transactions 
as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at the link:

	 https://www.vardhman.com/Document/Report/Company%20
Information/Policies/Vardhman%20Acrylics%20Ltd/Related_
Party_Transactions_Policy.pdf

ii.	 There has not been any non-compliance by the Company in 
respect of which penalties or strictures were imposed by the 
Stock Exchanges or Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI) or any other Statutory Authority, on any matter related 
to Capital Markets, during the last three years.

iii.	 The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business 
activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting illegal 
or unethical behaviour. The Company has a Vigil Mechanism 
and Whistle Blower Policy under which the employees are 
free to report violations of applicable laws and regulations 
and the Code of Conduct. The policy on “Vigil Mechanism and 
Whistle Blower” may be accessed on the Company’s website 
at the link: https://www.vardhman.com/Document/Report/
Company%20Information/Policies/Vardhman%20Acrylics%20
Ltd/Vigil_Mechanism_Policy.pdf

iv.	 The Company has complied with all the applicable requirements 
specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and 46 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

v.	 The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted (i) the Code 
of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished 
Price Sensitive Information and (ii) the Code of Conduct, 
as required under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015.
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vi.	 During the year, no complaint was filed pursuant to the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

vii.	 Risk Management Policy as required under the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has 
been duly formulated and approved by the Board of Directors of 
the Company. The aim of Risk Management Policy is to maximize 
opportunities in all activities and to minimize adversity.

viii.	 Further, the Company has complied with all mandatory 
requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company may also take-
up the non-mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations 
in due course of time.

ix.	 The Company has no material subsidiary. The policy for 
determining ‘material’ subsidiary is available at Company’s 
website at the link https://www.vardhman.com/Document/
Report/Company%20Information/Policies/Vardhman%20
Acrylics%20Ltd/Material_Subsidiary_Policy.pdf

x.	 As on March 31, 2025, there was no outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ 
Warrants or any convertible instruments.

xi.	 During the year 2024-25, the Company had managed the 
foreign exchange risk and hedged to the extent considered 
necessary. The Company enters into forward contracts for 
hedging foreign exchange exposures against imports. The 
details of foreign currency exposure are disclosed in the Note 
No. 42 to the Financial Statements.

xii.	 During the year, the Company has not raised any funds through 
preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement.

xiii.	 A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of 
the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred 
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors 
of the Companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or 
any such statutory authority, forms part of this report.

xiv.	 There is no such instance where the Board has not accepted 
any recommendation of any Committee of the Board which is 
mandatorily required.

xv.	 Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its 
subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor 
and all entities in the network firm/ Company of which statutory 
auditor is part is H 5.70 lakhs.

xvi.	 The Company has not given any loans and advances to firms/
companies in which directors are interested.

xvii.	 Pursuant to Clause 5A of para A of Part A of Schedule III, there 
is no agreement which impacts management or control of 
the Company or imposes any restriction or creates any liability 
upon the Company.

9.	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
	 The Company communicates with the shareholders at large 

through its Annual Reports, publication of financial results, press 
releases in leading newspapers and by filing of various reports 
and returns with the Statutory Bodies like Stock Exchange and 
the Registrar of Companies. The quarterly financial results 
are published in prominent daily newspapers viz., “Business 
Standard” and “Desh Sewak”. The Financial Results of the 
Company are also made available at the Company’s website 
i.e. www.vardhman.com. 

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

i)	 35th Annual General Meeting:

	 Date : 24th September, 2025

	 Time : 03:00 p.m. 

	 Venue : Through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual 
Means (“OAVM”)

ii)	 Financial Calendar 2025-26 (Tentative)

	 First Quarter Results : July, 2025

	 Second Quarter Results : October, 2025

	 Third Quarter Results : January, 2026

	 Annual Results : May, 2026

iii) 	 Record Date: 12th September, 2025.

iv)	 Dividend payment date : Within 30 days after declaration

v)	 Listing : The securities of the Company are listed on:-

	 National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) -  Exchange 
Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai. 
Listing fee, as applicable, has been duly paid to the 
Stock Exchange.

vi)	 Information regarding dividend payment:

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 and 125 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘IEPF Rules’) dividends not encashed / 
claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to Unpaid 
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Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”).

	 Dividends remaining unpaid/unclaimed upto the Financial 
Year 2016-17 have been transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (IEPF). The unclaimed or unpaid dividend 
relating to the Financial Year 2017-18 is due for remittance in the 
month of November, 2025 to IEPF.

	 The IEPF Rules mandate companies to transfer shares of 
Members whose dividends remain unpaid/ unclaimed for a 
continuous period of seven years to the demat account of IEPF 
Authority. In accordance with the said IEPF Rules, the Company 
had sent notices to all the Members whose shares were due 
to be transferred to the IEPF Authority and simultaneously 
published newspapers advertisement. Thereafter, the shares 
of these Members were transferred to the IEPF and necessary 
e-form(s) in this regard were filed with MCA.

	 The Members whose dividend/ shares are transferred to the IEPF 
Authority can claim their shares/ dividend from the Authority 
by following the required procedure. Members are requested 
to get in touch with the Nodal Officer/ Compliance Officer for 
further details on the subject at secretarial.lud@vardhman.com.

vii)	 Registrar & Transfer Agent:

	 The work related to Share Transfer Registry in terms of both 
physical and electronic mode is being dealt with by M/s. MCS 
Share Transfer Agent Limited at the address given below:

	 M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
	 CIN: U67120WB2011PLC165872
	 Office No.3B3, 3rd Floor “B” Wing
	 Gundecha Onclave Premises Co-op Society Ltd,
	 Kherani Road, Sakinaka, Andheri East Mumbai — 400 072
	 Ph: 022-28516021 / 28516022 / 46049717
	 E- mail : mparase@mcsregistrars.com 
	 Website : www.mcsregistrars.com

viii) 	 Share Transfer System:

	 The Members may note that SEBI has mandated that securities of 
listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form 
w.e.f. 1st April, 2019. Further, in terms of Regulations 39 and 40(1) of 
SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, and SEBI 
Circular dated 25th January, 2022, it has been made mandatory for 
the listed entities to issue shares/ securities, within the prescribed 
time, in demat mode only while processing any investor service 
requests viz. issue of duplicate share certificates, exchange/ 
sub-division/ splitting/ consolidation of securities, transmission 
/ transposition of securities etc. Accordingly, shareholders are 
advised to open their demat account with any Depository 
Participants (DPs) having registration with SEBI.

	 The Company has delegated the power of approval of transfer, 
transmission, transposition, dematerialization and other related 
matters to M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, the Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Further, transfer 
of equity shares in electronic form is effected through the 
depositories with no involvement of the Company.

ix)	 Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2025:

RANGE SHAREHOLDERS SHARES

No. of Shares Numbers of Total Holders % to Total Holders Numbers of shares Held % to Total Shares

Upto-500 23099 81.65 28,20,240 3.51

501-1000 2544 8.99 21,57,823 2.69

1001-2000 1285 4.54 20,33,133 2.53

2001-3000 429 1.52 11,04,070 1.37

3001-4000 198 0.70 7,14,536 0.89

4001-5000 218 0.77 10,53,734 1.31

5001-10000 283 1.00 21,34,329 2.65

10001 and Above 235 0.83 6,83,45,881 85.05

TOTAL 28291 100.00 8,03,63,746 100.00
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x)	 Dematerialisation of shares:

	 On 31st March, 2025, 99.99% of the capital comprising 8,03,62,336 
shares, out of total of 8,03,63,746 shares, was dematerialized.

xi) 	 Plant Location:

	 755, GIDC, MEGA ESTATE,
	 Jhagadia – 393 110,
	 Distt. Bharuch, Gujarat.

xii) 	 Address for correspondence:

	 Registered office : Vardhman Premises, Chandigarh Road, 
Ludhiana-141010

	 Tel : 0161-2228943-48
	 E-mail : secretarial.lud@vardhman.com
	 (Exclusively for redressal of investors’ grievances)

A.	 I, S.P. Oswal, Chairman of Vardhman Acrylics Limited, declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
compliance with ‘Code of Conduct for Board & Senior Management Personnel’ for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

	 Sd/-
	 Place: Ludhiana	  S.P. Oswal
	 Dated: 30th April, 2025 	 Chairman

B.	 I, S.P. Oswal, Chairman of Vardhman Acrylics Limited, on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, hereby confirm that the 
Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the Management.

Sd/-
	 Place: Ludhiana	  S.P. Oswal
	 Dated: 30th April, 2025 	 Chairman

	 Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all 
their correspondence to their respective Depository Participants (DP).

xiii)	 List of credit ratings:

	 The Company has obtained rating from CRISIL Limited during 
the financial year 2024-25. There has been no revision in the 
credit ratings during the financial year 2024-25. List of all credit 
ratings obtained by the Company during the year are as follows:

Particulars Rating during FY 2024-25

Long Term Bank Facilities CRISIL AA/ Stable (Reaffirmed)

Short Term Bank Facilities  CRISIL A1+ (Reaffirmed)

CHAIRMAN’S DECLARATION
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CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES

This is to certify that on the basis of documents verified by us and explanations given to us by the Company, we hereby certify that none of 
the following directors on the Board of Vardhman Acrylics Limited (‘the Company’) have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed 
or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve Bank of India 
or any other Statutory Authority:

Sr. 
No. Director Identification Number Name of Director

1. 00121737 Mr. Shri Paul Oswal

2. 00746409 Mr. Sachit Jain

3. 00746471 Mrs. Suchita Jain

4. 00307110 Mr. Bal Krishan Choudhary

5. 10366909 Mr. Vivek Gupta

6. 00009928 Mr. Anil Kumar

7. 09626239 Mr. Bhooshan Lal Uppal

8. 08312705 Ms. Parakh Oswal

9. 01242929 Mr. Sanjeev Jain

10. 07016726 Mr. Sandeep Kapur

This certificate is issued pursuant to Clause 10 (i) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

For Ashok K Singla & Associates,
Company Secretaries,

Sd/-
Ashok Singla

Proprietor
 Membership No. 2004

Date: 30th April, 2025 	 Certificate of Practice No. 1942
Place: Ludhiana 	 UDIN: F002004G000234852
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

The Members of
Vardhman Acrylics Limited

We have examined relevant records of Vardhman Acrylics Limited (the Company) for the purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of 
Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 as per the provisions of Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 
46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the review 
of procedure and implementation thereof. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

On the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanations and information furnished, we certify that the Company has complied 
with the conditions of Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management 
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ashok K Singla & Associates,
Company Secretaries,

Sd/-
Ashok Singla

Proprietor
 Membership No. 2004

Date: 30th April, 2025 	 Certificate of Practice No. 1942
Place: Ludhiana 	 UDIN: F002004G000234863 
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of,
Vardhman Acrylics Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1)	 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
Vardhman Acrylics Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash flows 
for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of the material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “ Ind 
AS Financial Statements”).

2)	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial 
Statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 as amended (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its Profit 
including other comprehensive income its cash flows and 
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

	 Basis for Opinion

3)	 We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs") specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements” section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the “Code of Ethics” issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind 
AS Financial Statements.

	 Key Audit Matters

4)	 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Ind 
AS Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. For each matter below, our description 
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that 
context. We have determined the matter described below to 
be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. 
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material 
included the performance of procedures designed to respond 
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the Ind AS Financial Statements. The results of our audit 
procedures, including the procedures performed to address 
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Uncertain income-tax positions – Refer to Notes 2.2 (f ), 2.4 (7), 35 
to the financial statement

The Company has material uncertain income-tax positions 
including matters under dispute relating to Income Taxes. These 
matters involve significant management judgement to determine 
the possible outcome of these disputes.

Principal audit procedures performed:
• 	 Obtained an understanding of and performed testing of design, 

implementation and operating effectiveness of the control established by 
the Company with regard to uncertain income tax positions.

• 	 We obtained details of complete income tax matters from the Company’s 
internal tax experts during the year ended March 31, 2025.

• 	 We involved our internal direct tax experts to challenge the management’s 
underlying assumptions in estimating the tax provisions and possible 
outcome of the disputes. Our internal direct tax experts also considered 
legal precedence and other rulings in evaluating management’s position 
on these uncertain tax positions relating to Income Taxes.

• 	 Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made in the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report Thereon

5)	 The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Directors’ Report including annexures, if any, thereon, and 
Corporate Governance Report but does not include the Ind AS 
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

	 Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information identified 
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial Statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial 
Statements

6)	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 
of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, Cash flows and change in equity 
of the Company in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act , read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 
as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

	 In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, the management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS 
Financial Statements

7)	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing, 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

8)	 As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements 
made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management 
and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of 
the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

	 Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS 
Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the Ind AS Financial Statements may 
be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS 
Financial Statements.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

	 From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9)	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 
(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give 
in “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

10)	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we 
report, that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as appears from 
our examination of such books except for the matters 
stated in paragraph 2(f) below on reporting under Rule 
11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including the Statement of the Other Comprehensive 
Income the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement 
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements 
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from 
the Directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a Director in 
terms of under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act;

f)	 The Reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts 
and other matters connected therewith, are as stated in 
the Paragraph 10 (b) above on reporting under Section 
14(3) (b) of the Act and paragraph 10 (h) (vi) below on 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in “Annexure-B”. 
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h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of clause (j) of sub-
section (3) of section 143 of the Act as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial statements. Refer Note 35 to the Ind AS 
Financial Statement.

ii.	 The Company has made provision as required 
under the applicable law or accounting standards, 
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term 
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.(a) 	The management has represented that, to the best 
of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the 
Note No. 53 to the IND AS Financial Statements, 
no funds (which are material either individually or 
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person (s) or entity 
(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) 	 The management has represented that, to the best 
of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 
No. 54 to the IND AS Financial Statements, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been received by the Company 
from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign 
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) 	 Based on the audit procedures that we considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under subclause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement.

v.	 The dividend declared and paid during the year by 
the Company is in compliance with Section 123 of 
the Act.

vi.	 Based on our examination which included test 
checks, the company has used accounting software 
for maintaining its books of account for the financial 
year ended March 31,2025 which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same 
has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software except below:

(a)	 The audit trail facility has not been enabled at 
the database level to log any direct data changes 
made in the software “NOW” which is used for 
maintaining quantitative record of inventories 
from April 01, 2024 to September 16, 2024.

(b)	 The audit trail facility in the software “NOW” 
has been designed in such a way that it is not 
possible to verify whether such facility had been 
disabled at any point in time during the year.

	 Further except as mentioned above, during the course 
of audit, we did not come across any instance of audit 
trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has 
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention.

11)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) 
of the Act, as amended.

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the company has paid/ provided 
for managerial remuneration to its director during the year in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

(Anuj Dhingra)

Partner

Place: Noida Membership No.: 512535

Dated: 30th April, 2025 UDIN: 25512535BMOGAV3171
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(i)(a) 	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we 
state that:

(A)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and the situation 
of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of 
right-of-use assets.

(B)	 The Company doesn’t own any intangible assets as at 
March 31, 2025.

(b)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that The Company has adopted a policy of physical verification 
of all the items of property, plant and equipment so to cover 
all the items in a phased manner over a period of three years 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for 
verification during the year and were physically verified by the 
Management during the year. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, discrepancies noticed on such 
verification were not material and have been properly dealt 
with in the books of account.

(c)	 The Company does not have any immovable property (other 
than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee), therefore 
requirements to report under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the order are 
not applicable to the Company.

(d)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we 
state that the Company has not revalued its property, plant 
and equipment (including right-of-use assets) during the year 
(as referred above, company does not own any intangible 
assets as at March 31, 2025) (. Consequently, the question of 
our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on 
the valuation by a Register Valuer, or specifying the amount 
of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of 

the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and 
Equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible Assets 
does not arise.

(e)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that, no proceedings have been initiated or during the year 
or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for 
holding any benami property under Prohibition of Benami 
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) 	To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us and the books of account and records examined 
by us in the normal course of audit, we state that, physical 
verification has been conducted by management at reasonable 
intervals in respect of finished goods, stores and spares, Work 
in progress and raw material, Further, stock in the possession 
and custody of third parties and stock in transit as at March 
31, 2025 has been verified by the management with reference 
to confirmation and statement of accounts or correspondence 
with the third party or subsequent receipt of goods. In our 
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. No 
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class 
of inventory have been noticed on physical verification of 
inventories when compared with books of account.

(b) 	 The Company has been sanctioned unsecured (No security 
provided) working capital limits in excess of H5 crore, in 
aggregate, at any points of time during the year from banks. 
Therefore, reporting under clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the company.

(iii)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that, the Company has not made any investment in, provided 
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in 
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. 
The Company has made investments in mutual funds during 
the year. Further, the Company has granted loans, unsecured 
to employees during the year, in respect of which the requisite 
information is given in paragraph 3(iii)(a) below.

Annexure – “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Vardhman 
Acrylics Limited on the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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(a)	 The Company has provided loans to employees and details of which are given below:

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted/ provided 
during the year

• Associates - - - -

• Others - - 6.77** -

Balance outstanding as at Balance sheet 
date in respect of above cases

• Associates - - - -

• Others - - 5.79** -

**Refer Note 5 & 12 of Ind AS Financial Statements

(b)	 The investments made and the terms and conditions of 
the grant of all the above-mentioned loans to employees 
during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not 
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c)	 In respect of loans granted to employees, the schedule 
of repayment of principal has been stipulated and the 
repayments of principal amounts are regular as per 
stipulation. There are no interest-bearing loans given by 
the company.

(d)	 According to information and explanations given to us 
and based on the audit procedures performed, in respect 
of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans 
provided by the Company, there is no overdue amount 
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e)	 No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the 
Company which has fallen due during the year, has been 
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the 
overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f)	 To the best of our information and according to the 
explanations provided to us by the Company and the 
books of account and records examined by us in the 
normal course of audit, we did not come across loans 
or advance in the nature of loans either repayable on 
demand without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment during the year. Hence, requirements to report 
under paragraph 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(iv)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any 
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of 
the Act. In respect of the investments made by the Company, in 
our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been 
complied with.

(v)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that, the Company has not accepted any deposits during the 
year covered under the provisions of sections 73 to 76 and any 
other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules framed there under and therefore reporting under clause 
3(v) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(vi)	 The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the 
Central Government of India Under Section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, for certain products manufactured by 
the Company. We have broadly reviewed the cost records 
maintained by the company pursuant to the Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit ) Rules, 2014 as amended prescribed by the 
Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act and are of 
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed cost records have 
been made and maintained. However, we have not made a 
detailed examination of such accounts and records with a view 
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)(a) To the best of our information and according to the 
explanations provided to us by the Company and the books 
of account and records examined by us in the normal course 
of audit, we state that, the Company has been regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income tax, Service tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of excise, Value 
Added Tax, Cess, sales tax and other applicable statutory dues 
with the appropriate authorities.

	 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, 
cess and any other statutory dues as on the last day of the 
financial year concerned for a period of more than six months 
from the date, they became payable.
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(b)	 Details of statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes 
are given below:

Name of Statue Nature of Dues Amount 
(Din lakhs)

Financial year to which the 
dispute relates

Forum at which dispute is 
pending

The Punjab VAT Act, 2005 VAT and CST 7.85 2016-17 VAT Tribunal, Punjab

The Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 31.87 2005-06 To 2009-10 and 2016-17 
to 2017-18

Assistant Commissioner/ 
Superintendent

The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 11.44 2020-21 and 2022-23 ITAT & CIT(A)

(viii)	  To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that, there were no transactions in the books of accounts that 
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
Accordingly, the requirements to report under paragraph 3(viii) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(ix)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,  
we state that,

(a)	 The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 
or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to 
any lender.

(b)	 The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by 
any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c)	 The Company has not taken any term loan during the year 
and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning 
of the year.

(d)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements 
of the Company, funds raised on short- term basis have, 
prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 
purposes by the Company.

(e)	 The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, 
or joint venture as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013 and therefore, the requirements to report under 
Paragraph 3(ix)(e) & (f) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

(x)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we 
state that:

(a)	 The Company has not raised money by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) 
of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(b)	 During the year, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally 
convertible). Therefore, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of 
the Order is not applicable to the company.

(xi)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanation 
provided to us by the Company and the books of accounts 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we 
state that:

(a)	 Neither any fraud by the company, nor any fraud on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the course 
of the audit; nor we have been informed of any such case 
by the Company.

(b)	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and 
upto the date of this report.

(c)	 No whistle blower complaints received by the Company 
during the year (and up to the date of this report).

(xii)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting 
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(xiii)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that, the transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and 
the details of the transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian 
Accounting Standards.

(xiv)(a) To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we 
state that the Company has an adequate internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.
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(b) 	 We have considered the internal audit reports for the year 
under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till 
date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures.

(xv)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with its directors or persons connected with its directors. 
Therefore, reporting under clause 3(xv) of the order is not 
applicable to the company.

(xvi)	 To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we 
state that, 

(a)	 The Company is not required   to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Therefore, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable to the company.

(b)	 The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking 
Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid 
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank 
of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; and 
therefore, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable.

(c)	 The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as 
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 
India, and therefore reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(d)	 The Company does not have any CICs, which are a part 
of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated 
whether the information provided by the Management 
is accurate and complete. Accordingly, requirements to 
report under Paragraph 3(xvi) (d) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company

(xvii)	 The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial 
year cand nor in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the 
Company during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(xix)	  To the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 

dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS Financial 
Statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to 
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating 
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

	 We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due.

(xx)(a) In respect of other than on-going projects: On the basis of 
examination of records of the company and in absence of 
unspent amount, the Company is not required to transfer the 
unspent amount to a fund specified in Schedule VII to the 
Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry 
of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to 
subsection (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

(b)	 In respect of on-going projects: The Company has not 
undertaken any ongoing project for the Corporate Social 
Responsibility activities during the year. Therefore, requirement 
of transferring of amount remaining unspent in compliance with 
the provisions of sub-section (6) of section 135 of Companies 
Act is not applicable to the company.

(xxi)	 The consolidated financial statements are not applicable to 
the company. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the 
Order is not applicable.

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

(Anuj Dhingra)

Partner

Place: Noida Membership No.: 512535

Dated: 30th April, 2025 UDIN: 25512535BMOGAV3171
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

1)	 We have audited the internal financial control over financial 
reporting of Vardhman Acrylics Limited (“the Company”) as 
of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.

	 Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

2)	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance 
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

	 Auditors’ Responsibility

3)	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

4)	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5)	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

	 Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting

6)	 A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that:

a)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company.

b)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and

Annexure – “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in Paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Vardhman 
Acrylics Limited on the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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c)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the Financial Statements.

	 Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting

7)	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting 

may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

	 Opinion

8)	 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal 
financial control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

(Anuj Dhingra)

Partner

Place: Noida Membership No.: 512535

Dated: 30th April, 2025 UDIN: 25512535BMOGAV3171
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Balance Sheet 
As at 31st March, 2025	 (All amounts in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at
31st March,2025

As at 
31st March,2024

ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) 	 Property, plant and equipment 3a 4,658.36 4,462.68
(b) 	 Right of Use Asset 3b 1,097.68 1,112.18
(c) 	 Capital work-in-progress 3c 10.89 1.68
(d) 	 Intangible Assets - -
(e) 	 Financial Assets

(i)	 Investments 4 6,438.38 8,940.92
(ii)	 Loans 5 2.77 0.49
(iii)	 Others financial assets 6 90.46 35.77

(f )	 Other non-current Assets 7 153.15 153.61
Total Non-current assets 12,451.69 14,707.33

2 Current assets
(a)	 Inventories 8 8,089.04 7,495.39
(b)	 Financial Assets

(i)	 Investments 9 12,117.69 7,945.26
(ii)	 Trade receivables 10 876.25 1,624.38
(iii)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 76.96 79.09
(iv)	 Bank balances other than (iii) above 11A 281.67 278.70
(v)	 Loans 12 3.01 3.85
(vi)	 Other financial assets 13 10.15 17.24

(c)	 Other current assets 14 956.74 629.25
Total Current assets 22,411.51 18,073.16

TOTAL ASSETS 34,863.20 32,780.49

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)	 Equity Share capital 15 8,036.37 8,036.37
(b)	 Other Equity 16 15,828.98 16,261.13
Total Equity 23,865.35 24,297.50
Liabilities

1 Non-current liabilities
(a)	 Financial Liabilities
       	Lease Liability 17 0.08 0.08
(b)	 Provisions 18 48.44 52.50
(c)	 Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 19 959.70 671.43
(d)	 Other non-current liabilities 20 14.75 11.11
Total Non-current liabilities 1,022.97 735.12

2 Current liabilities
(a)	 Financial Liabilities

(i)	 Borrowings 21 17.69 113.57
(ii)	 Trade payables 22

(A)	 total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 224.75 26.91
(B)	� total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises
6,494.97 4,262.06

(iii)	 Other financial liabilities 23 793.67 717.00
(b)	 Other Current liabilities 26 147.89 229.95
(c)	 Provisions 24 16.11 45.65
(d)	 Current tax liabilities (net) 25 2,279.80 2,352.73
Total Current liabilities 9,974.88 7,747.87
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 34,863.20 32,780.49

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1 to 59

As per our report of even date attached
For S C V & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Vardhman Acrylics Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000235N/N500089

Anuj Dhingra Satin Katyal Raish Shaikh Vivek Gupta S.P. Oswal
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director Chairman
Membership No.: 512535 Membership No:-A40578 DIN: 10366909 DIN: 00121737
Place: Noida Place: Ludhiana Place: Jhagadia Place: Gurugram Place: Ludhiana
Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025
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Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (All amounts in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No For the year ended 
31st March, 2025 

For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

I  Revenue from operations 27 28,156.53 29,747.87

II  Other income 28 1,561.13 1,402.72

III  Total Income (I+II) 29,717.66 31,150.59

IV  Expenses :

Cost of materials consumed 29 19,093.25 19,540.43

Purchases of stock-in-trade 30 553.48 -

Changes in inventory of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods 31 215.09 (201.24)

Employee benefit expense 32 2,041.09 2,004.37

Finance cost 33 24.91 28.67

Depreciation and amortization expenses 3a & 3b 300.13 563.00

Other expenses 34 5,884.76 7,080.30

Total Expenses (IV) 28,112.71 29,015.53

V Profit before tax (III-IV) 1,604.95 2,135.06

VI Tax expense:

Current tax 159.63 406.37

Deferred tax 263.18 (24.87)

Total tax expense 422.81 381.50

VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 1,182.14 1,753.56

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a)	 (i)	 Remeasurements of the defined benefits plans 10.31 (6.84)

(ii)	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (2.60) 1.72

(b)	 (i)	 Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 10.38 22.90

(ii)	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (25.09) -

Total Other Comprehensive income for the year(Net of taxes) (7.00) 17.78

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII) 1,175.14 1,771.34

Earnings per equity share

Equity share of par value of `10/- each

Basic (in `)(per share) 1.47 2.18

Diluted (in `)(per share) 1.47 2.18

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements 1 to 59

As per our report of even date attached
For S C V & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Vardhman Acrylics Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000235N/N500089

Anuj Dhingra Satin Katyal Raish Shaikh Vivek Gupta S.P. Oswal
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director Chairman
Membership No.: 512535 Membership No:-A40578 DIN: 10366909 DIN: 00121737
Place: Noida Place: Ludhiana Place: Jhagadia Place: Gurugram Place: Ludhiana
Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025
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Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (All amounts in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2025 

For the year ended
 31st March, 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before tax 1,604.95 2,135.06

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and Amortization expense 300.13 563.00

Finance cost 2.20 8.01

Interest on lease liability 0.01 0.01

Interest income (29.54) (12.57)

(Profit)/Loss on sale of investment (net) (535.94) (575.40)

Gain on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (24.69) (4.17)

Loss on discard of Property, Plant and Equipment 8.78 18.39

Net Gain on fair valuation of investment at fair value through 
Profit or loss

(665.63) (626.28)

Foreign exchange (gain) or loss 90.98 (5.65)

Bad debts/Allowances for expected credit loss/ Credit 
Impairment

0.03 12.89

Provisions no longer required written back (126.31) (979.98) (22.61) (644.38)

Operating profit before working capital changes 624.97 1,490.68

Adjustments for working capital changes:

Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 748.14 (296.63)

Decrease/(increase) in loans (1.45) 2.72

Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets (current) (45.67) (12.24)

Decrease / (Increase) in other assets (current) (327.52) 378.07

Decrease / (Increase) in other assets (non current) 0.46 (22.07)

Decrease/(increase) in Inventories (593.65) 832.92

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 2,430.76 (1,126.80)

Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (current) (10.93) (187.00)

Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (non current) (0.01) -

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (current) 22.43 186.93

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (non current) (0.43) 2,222.13 (6.22) (250.32)

Cash generated from operations 2,847.10 1,240.36

Income taxes paid (232.57) (232.57) (502.81) (502.81)

Net cash generated from operating activities 2,614.53 737.55

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (503.52) (324.81)

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment 28.90 8.01

Interest received 27.61 16.77

Proceeds from  sale of Investments  in Mutual Funds/Liquid 
Funds/Debt Funds

33,431.86 13,917.41

Payment for purchase of Investments in Mutual Funds/Liquid 
Funds/Debt Funds

(33,889.77) (12,415.75)
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Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (All amounts in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2025 

For the year ended
 31st March, 2024

Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents (2.97) 24.47 

Net cash flow from (used in) investing activities (907.89) 1226.10 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of short - term borrowings  (95.89)  -   

Proceeds from short - term borrowings  -    79.79 

Dividend paid to company's shareholders  (1,610.67)  (2,022.04)

Interest paid (2.20) (8.01)

Interest on lease liability (0.01) (0.01)

Net cash from (or used in) financing activities  (1,708.77)  (1,950.25)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (2.13) 13.40 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR # 79.09 65.69 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 
(Refer note 11) *

76.96 79.09 

*H79.09 Lakhs -  Cash on Hand H0.49 Lakhs, Balance with banks in current accounts H32.14 Lakhs and balance with banks In deposit accounts with maturity 
upto three months H46.46 Lakhs	

*H65.69 Lakhs -  Cash on Hand H.0.60 Lakhs, Balance with banks in current accounts H24.96 Lakhs and balance with banks In deposit accounts with maturity 
upto three months H40.12 Lakhs	

*H76.96 Lakhs -  Cash on Hand H0.44 Lakhs, Balance with banks in current accounts H27.49 Lakhs and balance with banks In deposit accounts with maturity 
upto three months H49.03 Lakhs

There are no non cash changes arising from financial activities
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For S C V & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Vardhman Acrylics Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000235N/N500089

Anuj Dhingra Satin Katyal Raish Shaikh Vivek Gupta S.P. Oswal
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director Chairman
Membership No.: 512535 Membership No:-A40578 DIN: 10366909 DIN: 00121737
Place: Noida Place: Ludhiana Place: Jhagadia Place: Gurugram Place: Ludhiana
Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (All amounts in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount

Balance as at April 1, 2023  8,036.37 

Changes in Equity Share Capital during 23-24  -   

Balance as at March 31, 2024  8,036.37 

Changes in Equity Share Capital during 24-25  -   

Balance as at March 31, 2025  8,036.37  

b. Other equity

Particulars

OTHER EQUITY

Total 
other  

equity

Reserves & Surplus Other comprehensive income

Capital
 reserve

Securities 
premium

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Equity instruments 
through other 

comprehensive 
income

Other items 
of other 

comprehensive 
income

Balance as of 1st April 2024  2,816.88  -  4,006.15  9,309.09  117.40  11.62  16,261.13
Profit for the Year  1,182.14 1,182.14

Other comprehensive income for the  
year (net of income tax)

(14.71) 7.72 (7.00)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,182.14 (14.71) 7.72 1,175.14
Payment of dividend (1,607.29) (1,607.29)

Balance as of 31st March 2025 2,816.88 - 4,006.15  8,883.93  102.69 19.34 15,828.98

Particulars

OTHER EQUITY

Total 
other  

equity

Reserves & Surplus Other comprehensive income

Capital
 reserve

Securities 
premium

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Equity instruments 
through other 

comprehensive 
income

Other items 
of other 

comprehensive 
income

Balance as of 1st April 2023  2,816.88  -    4,006.15  9,564.62  94.50  16.74  16,498.89 
Profit for the Year  1,753.56 1,753.56 

Other comprehensive income for the  
year (net of income tax)

22.90 (5.12) 17.78 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,753.56 22.90 (5.12) 1,771.34 
Payment of dividend (2,009.09) (2,009.09)

Balance as of 31st March 2024 2,816.88 - 4,006.15  9,309.09  117.40 11.62 16,261.13 

 The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For S C V & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Vardhman Acrylics Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000235N/N500089

Anuj Dhingra Satin Katyal Raish Shaikh Vivek Gupta S.P. Oswal
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director Chairman
Membership No.: 512535 Membership No:-A40578 DIN: 10366909 DIN: 00121737
Place: Noida Place: Ludhiana Place: Jhagadia Place: Gurugram Place: Ludhiana
Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025
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Notes to Financial Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (All amounts in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. 	 Corporate Information
	 Vardhman Acrylics Limited (“the Company’’) is a public limited 

company, incorporated under the provisions of The Companies 
Act and has its registered office at Vardhman Premises, 
Chandigarh Road, Ludhiana, Punjab, India. The equity shares 
of the company are listed on National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited.

	 The Company is a leading manufacturer and supplier of Acrylic 
Fibre and Tow having its manufacturing facility in Gujarat, India.

	 Vardhman Textiles Limited (Holding Co. of the entity) 
owns 70.74% of the company’s equity share capital as at  
31st March 2025.

	 The Board of Directors approved the Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31st March, 2025 and authorised for issue on  
30th April 2025.

2.	 Accounting policies, accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions and applicability of 
new and revised Ind AS

2.1 	 Basis of preparation

	 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As) under the historical 
cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial 
instruments measured at fair value, the provision of Companies 
Act 2013 and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. 
The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

	 The following assets and liabilities which have been measured 
at fair value:

-	 Derivative financial instruments

-	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at 
fair value.

	 The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

	 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except 
where in newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted 
or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a 
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The material accounting policies used in preparation of the financial 
statements have been disclosed as under:

Note 2.2 Material Accounting Policies
(a)	 Revenue Recognition

	 Revenue

	 Revenue towards satisfaction of performance obligation is 
measured at the amount of transaction price allocated to that 
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold is 
net of variable consideration on account of various discounts 
and schemes offered by the company as a part of the contract.

	 i.	 Sale of products

	 The company derives revenue primarily from sale of 
Acrylic Fibre and Tow.

	 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point 
in time when control is transferred to the customer which 
is usually on dispatch/ delivery.

	 Revenue is measured based on the transaction price (net 
of variable consideration) which is consideration, adjusted 
for volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price 
concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in 
the contracts with the customers.

	 Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on 
behalf of the government.

	 Due to short nature of credit period given to customers, 
there is no financing component in the contract.

	 ii.	 Interest income

-	 Interest Income from customers is recognized on 
a time proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

-	 Interest Income from financial asset is recognized 
when it is probable that economic benefits will 
flow to the company and amount of income can 
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on 
time basis, by reference to principal outstanding and 
at effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of financial asset to that 
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (All amounts in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

	 iii.	 Dividend income

	 Dividend income from investment is recognized when 
the right to receive the payment is established and 
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

	 iv.	 Insurance and Other Claims

	 Revenue in respect of claims is recognized when no 
significant uncertainty exists with regard to the amount 
to be realized and the ultimate collection thereof.

(b)	 Employee Benefits

i.	 Short term Employee Benefits :

	 Short Term Employee Benefits are recognized as an expense 
on an undiscounted basis in the statement of profit and loss 
of the year in which the related service is rendered.

ii 	 Post Employee Benefits Plans:

	 Defined Contributions Plans

(a)	 Provident Fund

	 Employees receive benefit in the form of provident 
fund which is a defined contribution plan. The 
Company has no obligation, other than the 
contribution payable to the provident fund. The 
Company recognizes contribution payable to the 
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an 
employee renders the related service.

(b)	 Superannuation

	 Certain employees of the Company are participants 
in a defined contribution plan. The Company has no 
further obligations to the Plan beyond its monthly 
contributions which are periodically contributed to 
a trust fund, the corpus of which is invested with the 
Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Defined Benefits Plan:

(c)	 Gratuity

	 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined 
benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan') covering 
eligible employees of the Company. The Gratuity 
Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or 
termination of employment, of an amount based 
on the respective employee's salary and the tenure 
of employment with the Company.

	 Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are 
determined by actuarial valuation, performed by 
an independent actuary, at each balance sheet 
date using the projected unit credit method. The 
company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities 
to the Vardhman Acrylics Limited Gratuity Fund 
Trust (the Trust). Trustees administer contributions 
made to the Trusts and contributions are invested in 
the scheme with Life insurance corporation of India 
as permitted by Indian Law.

	 The Company recognizes the net obligation of 
a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as 
an asset or liability. Gain and losses through re-
measurements of the net defined benefit liability 
/ asset are recognised in other comprehensive 
income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in 
subsequent periods.

	 The actual return of portfolio of plan assets in excess 
of the yields computed by applying the discount 
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation 
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

iii 	 Long term employee benefits:

	 Compensated absences

	 The Company has a policy on compensated absences 
which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in 
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated 
absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed 
by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date 
using projected unit credit method. Expense on non-
accumulating compensated absences is recognized in 
the period in which the absences occur.

(c)	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs 
directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the 
property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended 
by management. The company depreciates property, plant and 
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives of assets as prescribed 
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 except 
the assets costing H5,000/- or below on which deprecation 
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is charged @ 100% per annum on proportionate basis, are 
as follows:

Building - 30-60 years.

Plant and Machinery - 15-25 years.

Office Equipment - 5 Years

Computer Equipment - 3 years.

Furniture and fittings - 10 years

Vehicles excluding Motor cycles - 08 years.

Motor cycles - 10 years.

	 On transition to Ind AS , the company has elected to continue 
with the carrying value of all its Property, plant & equipment 
recognized as at 1st April,2016 measured as per previous GAAP 
and use that carrying value as it’s deemed cost of it’s Property 
plant and equipment.

	 Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified 
as capital advances under other ‘non-current assets’ and the 
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed 
under ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

	 Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and 
equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

	 Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.

	 The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated 
from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the 
asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

	 Impairment of property, plant and equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount  
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) 
is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does 

not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined 
for the CGU (Cash Generating unit) to which the asset belongs.

	 If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to 
be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured 
by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets 
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An 
impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss 
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined (net of any accumulated depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

	 Impairment is reviewed periodically, including at each financial 
year end.

(d)	 Inventories

	 Inventories of raw materials, stores and spares, work-in-progress 
and finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value, 
whichever is lower. However, materials and other items held for 
use in the production of Inventories are not written down below 
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated 
are expected to be sold at or above cost. The cost in respect of 
the aforesaid items of inventory is computed as under:

-	 In case of raw materials, at weighted average cost plus 
direct expenses.

-	 In case of stores and spares, at weighted average cost plus 
direct expenses.

-	 In case of work-in-progress, at raw material cost plus 
conversion cost depending upon the stage of completion.

-	 In case of finished goods, at raw material cost plus 
conversion cost, packing cost and other overheads 
incurred to bring the goods to their present condition 
and location.

-	 Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in 
ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make 
the sale.
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(e)	 Earnings per Share

	 Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net 
profit for the period attributable to the equity share holders of 
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period.

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the 
net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders 
is divided by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period after adjusting for the effects of 
all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

(f)	 Taxes on Income

	 Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. 
Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss except to when it relates to items recognized directly in 
equity or items recognised in other comprehensive income in 
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

	 Current income tax for current period is recognized at the 
amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax 
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary 
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable 
income in the years in which those temporary differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in 
tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized as 
income or expense in the period that includes the enactment 
or the substantive enactment date.

	 A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and 
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they are governed by 
the same taxation laws.

	 The company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, 
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized 
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or 
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(g)	 Foreign Currency Transactions

	 Transaction and balances

	 The foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial 
recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign 
currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional 
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

	 The monetary items denominated in foreign currency are 
reported using the closing rate at the end of each reporting 
period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency is translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

	 The non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical 
cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

	 Exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting 
of monetary items at rates different from rates at which these 
were initially recorded during the period or reported in previous 
financial statements as recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss in the period in which they arise.

	 Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to 
borrowing costs are presented in the statements of profit and loss, 
within finance cost. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are 
presented in the statement of profit and loss on net basis. 

(h)	 Dividends

	 The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date 
of approval by the shareholders. Interim dividends are recorded 
as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board. 
Company is required to pay / distribute dividend after deducting 
applicable taxes.

Particulars 
For the year 

ended 31 
March,2025

For the year 
ended 31 

March,2024

Final dividend for Fiscal 2024 - 2.00

Interim dividend for Fiscal 2025 - -

	 During the year ended March 31, 2025, on account of the final 
dividend for fiscal 2024, the Company has incurred a net cash 
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outflow of H1,607.27 lakhs. The Board of Directors, recommended 
a final dividend of H1.50 per equity share for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025. This payment is subject to the approval of 
shareholders in the AGM of the Company and if approved, would 
result in a net cash outflow of approximately H1,205.46 lakhs.

(i)	 Leases

	 The Company as a lessee

	 The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for 
land. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, 
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess 
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract 
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has 
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right 
to direct the use of the asset.

	 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company 
recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease 
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for 
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and 
leases for which underlying asset is of low value. For these short-
term and leases for which underlying asset is of low value, the 
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

	 The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of 
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They 
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses.

	 Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement 
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and 
useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated 
for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For 
the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. 
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not 
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from 

other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined 
for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the 
present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments 
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not 
readily determinable, using the lessee’s incremental borrowing 
rate. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding 
adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company 
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or 
a termination option.

(j)	 Financial Instruments

i.	 Initial Recognition and measurement

	 The company recognizes financial assets and financial 
liabilities when it becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

	 All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at 
fair value plus or minus transaction cost that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial asset 
or financial liability on initial recognition. However, trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing 
component are measured at transaction price. Transaction 
cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities, which are carried 
at fair value through profit or loss are immediately 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

ii.	 Subsequent measurement

	• 	 Non-derivative financial instruments

1.	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at 
amortised cost if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold the asset in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

1.	 Financial assets at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income if it 
is held within a business model whose objective 
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is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

2.	 Investments in equity instruments 
measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

	 On initial recognition, the company can make 
an irrevocable election for its investment 
which are classified as equity instruments to 
present the subsequent changes in fair value 
in other comprehensive income based on its 
business model. These elected investments are 
initially measured at fair value plus transaction 
cost, subsequently there are measured at 
fair value with gains and losses arising from 
changes in fair value recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the 
Reserve for equity instruments through Other 
Comprehensive Income. The cumulative gain or 
loss is not reclassified to the Statement of Profit 
or loss on disposal of the investments.

	 - The above election is not permitted if the 
equity investment is held for trading.

3.	 Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss

	 A financial asset which is not classified in any of 
the above categories is subsequently measured 
at fair valued through profit or loss.

4.	 Financial liabilities

	 The financial liabilities are subsequently 
carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method.

	¾ Derivative financial instruments

	 The Company holds derivative financial 
instruments such as foreign exchange forward 
and option contracts to mitigate the risk of 
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency 
exposures. The counterparty for these contracts 
is generally a bank.

	¾ Financial assets or financial liability at fair 
value through Profit or Loss

	 This category has derivative financial assets or 
liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

	 Although the Company believes that these 
derivatives constitute hedges from an 
economic perspective, they may not qualify for 
hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial 
Instruments. Any derivative that is either not 
designated a hedge, or is so designated but is 
ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as 
a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value 
through profit or loss.

	 Derivatives not designated as hedges are 
recognized initially at fair value and attributable 
transaction costs are recognized in net profit in 
the statement of profit and loss when incurred. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, these 
derivatives are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains 
or losses are included in other income. Assets/ 
liabilities in this category are presented as 
current assets/current liabilities if they are either 
held for trading or are expected to be realized 
within 12 months after the balance sheet date.

	¾ Cash Flow Hedge

	 The Company has not designated derivative 
financial instruments as cash flow hedges.

	¾ Derecognition of financial instruments

	 A financial asset is derecognized when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the right to 
receive the contractual cash flows including risk 
and rewards of ownership.

	 A financial liability is derecognized when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged 
or cancelled or expires.

	¾ Offsetting

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount is presented in the balance 
sheet when, and only when, the company 
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has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amount and it intends, either to settle them on 
a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

	¾ Fair value measurement

	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
is normally determined by reference to the 
transaction price or market price, if the fair value 
is not reliably determinable then the fair value is 
determined by using the valuation techniques 
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available, maximizing 
the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

	 Based on the three level fair value hierarchy, 
the methods used to determine the fair value 
of financial assets and liabilities include quoted 
market price, discounted cash flow analysis and 
valuation certified by the external valuer.

	 In case of financial instruments where the 
carrying amount approximates fair value due to 
the short maturity of those instruments, carrying 
amount is considered as fair value.

iii.	 Impairment

	 The company recognizes loss allowances using the 
expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets 
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss 
allowance for trade receivables with no significant 
financing component is measured at an amount equal 
to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected 
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 
12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those 
are measured at lifetime of ECL.

	 Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected 
credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the company 
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 
109. The company follows simplified approach does not 
require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather 
it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime 
ECL’s at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

	 The amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust 
the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount 
that is required to be recorded is recognized as an 
impairment loss or gain in statement of profit and loss.

(k)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of statement of cash 
flows include bank balances, where the original maturity is three 
months or less and other short term highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are 
included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for the 
purpose of statement of cash flow.

(l)	 Cash flow statement

	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit 
for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 
nature and item of income or expenses associated with investing 
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing 
and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The 
Company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

(m) 	 Provisions and Contingent liabilities:

(A)	 Provisions

	 - 	� Provisions are recognized if, as a result of past event, 
the company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive), and it is probable that a cash outflow 
will be required to settle the obligation in respect 
of where a reliable estimate can be made.

	 - 	� As the timing of outflows of resources is uncertain, 
being dependent upon the outcome of the future 
proceedings, these provisions are not discounted to 
their present value.

	 -	� When some or all of economics benefits required 
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, a receivable is recognized as on 
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will 
be received and amount of the receivable can be 
measured reliably.
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(B)	 Contingent liability

-	 A disclosure for contingent liability is made when is a 
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, 
but probably will not require an outflow of resources.

- 	 When there is possible obligation or a present 
obligation where the like hood of an outflow of 
resources is remote no provision or disclosure is made.

	 Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of 
advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.

	 Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the 
financial statements

	 Provisions, contingent liabilities, and commitments are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date.

Note 2.3 Other Accounting Policies
(a)	 Borrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
or construction of items of Property, plant and equipment which 
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Other 
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange 
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs.

(b)	 Government Grants

i.	 The government grants are recognized only when there 
is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached 
to them will be complied with, and the grants will 
be received.

ii.	 Government grants in relation to fixed assets are treated 
as deferred income and are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over 
the useful life of the asset.

iii.	 Government grants related to revenue are recognized on 
a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over 
the periods necessary to match them with the related 
costs which they are intended to compensate.

iv.	  Government grants that are receivable as compensation 
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose 
of giving immediate financial support to the company 

with no future related costs are recognized in profit or 
loss in the period in which they becoming receivable.

v.	 Export benefits are accounted for in the year of 
exports based on eligibility and when there is no 
uncertainty in receiving the same.

(c)	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization 
and impairment if any. Intangible assets are amortized over 
their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-
line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The 
estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based 
on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence 
etc. Amortization method and useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

(d) 	 Segment reporting

	 An operating segment is a component of the company that 
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues 
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate 
to transactions with any of the company’s other components, 
and for which discrete financial information is available.

Note 2.4 Use of accounting judgements and estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) require management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amount of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of 
the financial statement and reported amount of revenue and expense 
during the period.

Although these estimates are based upon management’s best 
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcome requiring a 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in 
future period.

The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical 
judgements that the management has made in the process 
of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have 
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements:

i.	 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

	 The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
are based on a number of factors including the effects of 
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obsolescence, internal assessment of user experience and other 
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and 
known technological advances) and the level of maintenance 
expenditure required to obtain the expected future cash flows 
from the asset.

	 The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and 
equipment at the end of each reporting date.

ii. 	 Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment

	 The recoverable amount of property plant and equipment is 
based on estimates and assumptions regarding the expected 
market outlook and expected future cash flows. Any changes 
in these assumptions may have a material impact on the 
measurement of the recoverable amount and could result 
in impairment.

iii.	 Defined benefit plans

	 Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis 
of actuarial assumptions including any changes in these 
assumptions that may have a material impact on the 
resulting calculations.

iv. 	 Recognition of deferred tax assets

	 Management judgement is required for the calculation of 
provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. 
The company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying 
amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may 
differ from actual outcome which could lead to signification 
adjustment to the amounts reported in financial statement.

v.	 Income Tax

	 The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements 
are involved in determining the provision for income taxes 
including judgement on whether tax positions are probable 
of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can 
involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over 
extended time periods.

vi.	 Inventory

	 Management has carefully estimated the net realizable values 
of inventories, taking into account the most reliable evidence 
available at each reporting date. The future realization of these 
inventories may be affected by market driven changes.

vii. 	 Contingencies

	 Management judgement is required for estimating the possible 
outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/
claims/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to 
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy. The 
Company annually assesses such claims and monitors the 
legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of 
external legal counsel, wherever necessary.

viii. 	 Fair value measurement

	 Some of the company’s assets and liabilities are measured at 
fair value for financial reporting process. In estimating the fair 
value of an asset or liability, the company uses
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3(a)	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Carrying amount of
Buildings  1,130.63  1,149.36 
Plant and equipment  3,407.38  3,186.92 
Furniture and fixtures  20.76  14.91 
Vehicles  67.98  65.58 
Office equipment  31.61  45.90 
Total Property, plant and equipment  4,658.36  4,462.68 
Capital work-in-progress 10.89 1.68 

 4,669.26  4,464.36 

The changes in carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ending 31 March, 2025 are as follows:	

Particulars Buildings Plant and 
 equipment

Furniture  
and fixtures Vehicles Office  

Equipment Total

Balance at 01st April 2024 1,825.66 6,537.87 28.80 147.44 206.92 8,746.69 
Additions 65.74 395.27 8.35 17.19 7.76 494.31 
Adjustments/Transfer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Deletions 0.00 (92.59) (0.64) (10.14) (0.22) (103.60)
Balance at 31st March 2025 1,891.40 6,840.55 36.51 154.50 214.46 9,137.41 
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2024 (676.30) (3,350.95) (13.89) (81.86) (161.01) (4284.01)
Depreciation (84.47) (163.74) (2.48) (12.90) (22.05) (285.63)
Accumulated depreciation on deletions 0.00 81.52 0.62 8.25 0.21 90.60 
Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2025 (760.77) (3,433.17) (15.74) (86.51) (182.85) (4,479.05)
Carrying Value as of 31st March 2025 1,130.63 3,407.38 20.76 67.98 31.61 4,658.36 

Carrying Value as of 1st April 2024 1,149.36 3,186.92 14.91 65.58 45.90 4,462.68 

The changes in carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ending 31 March, 2024 are as follows:

Particulars Buildings Plant and 
 equipment

Furniture  
and fixtures Vehicles Office  

Equipment Total

Balance at 01st April 2023 1,778.53 6,071.47 19.66 138.44 199.63 8,207.73 

Additions 47.13 6,03.08 9.14 20.53 9.19 689.07 

Adjustments/Transfer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Deletions 0.00 (1,36.67) 0.00 (11.53) (1.91) (150.11)

Balance at 31st March 2024 1,825.66 6,537.87 28.80 147.44 206.92 8,746.69 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2023 (593.09) (3,035.12) (9.45) (76.72) (150.01) (3,864.39)

Depreciation (83.21) (434.29) (4.44) (12.82) (12.74) (547.50)

Accumulated depreciation on deletions 0.00 118.46 0.00 7.68 1.73 127.87 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March 2024 (676.30) (3,350.95) (13.89) (81.86) (161.01) (4,284.01)

Carrying Value as of 31st March 2024 1,149.36 3,186.92 14.91 65.58 45.90 4,462.68 

Carrying Value as of 1st April 2023 1,185.44 3,036.35 10.21 61.72 49.62 4,343.35 

Notes on property, plant and equipment
1. Borrowing cost capitalised during the year ` NIL (Previous year NIL).
2. Also refer note 2 (c) for option used by the company to use carrying value of previous GAAP as deemed cost as on April 1, 2015
3. The title deeds of all immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.
4. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.
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3(b) Right of Use-Asset

Right of Use Asset As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Carrying amount of

Land  1,097.68  1,112.18 

Total Right of Use Asset  1,097.68  1,112.18 

Following are the changes in carrying value of Right of use of assets for the year ended 31 March 2025

Right of Use Asset

Cost Land

Balance at 01st April 2024  1,189.40 
Additions  -   

Adjustments/Transfer (Refer no 39)

Deletions  -   

Balance at 31st March 2025 1,189.40 
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2024 (77.22)
Depreciation (14.50)

Accumulated depreciation on deletions  -   

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March, 2025 (91.72)
Carrying Value as of 31st March 2025 1,097.68 
Carrying Value as of 1st April 2024  1,112.18 

*Refer note no 39 “Leases” for ROU assets movement

Cost Land

Balance at 01st April 2023  1,162.62 

Additions  26.78 

Adjustments/Transfer (Refer no 39)

Deletions  -   

Balance at 31st March 2024 1,189.40 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April 2023 (61.72)

Depreciation (15.50)

Accumulated depreciation on deletions  -   

Accumulated depreciation as at 31st March, 2024 (77.22)

Carrying Value as of 31st March 2024 1,112.18 

Carrying Value as of 1st April 2023  1,100.90 

Note - The aggregate depreciation expense on right of use asset is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of profit and loss.

3(c) Capital-Work-in Progress

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Capital-work-In- Progress 10.89 1.68
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As on 31.03.2025

CWIP aging schedule	 (Amount in ` Lakhs)

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than  
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years Total

Projects in progress 10.89 - - - 10.89

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Total 10.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.89

As on 31.03.2024

CWIP aging schedule	 (Amount in ` Lakhs)

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than  
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years Total

Projects in progress 1.68  -    -    -   1.68

Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -   0.00

Total 1.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.68

There are no capital work in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost  compared to its original plan.

4 Investments 

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Non current Investments

Non trade Investments

Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Investment in equity instrument

(Unquoted)

16,47,525 (31 March 2024: 1,647,525) Equity Shares of Narmada clean Tech (formerly known as 
Bharuch Eco-Aqua Infrastructure Ltd.) of ₹10/- each fully paid up.

 340.21  329.83 

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in Mutual Funds; Debt Funds; Fixed Maturity plans

(Quoted)

47,657,528 (31 March 2024: 47,657,528) Units of `10/- each of Edelweiss NIFTY PSU Bond Plus SDL 
Index Fund - 2026 Direct Plan Growth

 6,098.17  5,658.14 
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Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Nil (31 March 2024: 246,634) Units of `1000/- each of Edelweiss Bharat Bond ETF 2025  -    2,952.94 

Total  6,438.38  8,940.92 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  6,098.17  8,611.08 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  6,098.17  8,611.08 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  340.21  329.83 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -    -   

(I)	 Also, Refer note 42

(ii) 	 Refer Note 46 B information on investment pledged as security by company. 			 

5 Financial Asset Loan

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Non current

Financial assets at amortized cost

Loans receivables considered good - Unsecured

-	 Loans to employees  2.77  0.49 

 2.77  0.49 

Debts due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms 
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member is NIL	

6 Other  financial  assets 

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

 Non Current 

Financial assets at amortized cost

Fixed Deposit with banks more than twelve months maturity  90.46  35.77 

 90.46  35.77 

7 Other Non Current Assets

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits 143.97 143.97

Deferred Expense for Employee benefit  0.62  0.05 

Prepaid Expenses 2.43 3.46

Others 6.13 6.13

 153.15  153.61 
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8 Inventories (at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower)

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Raw materials 1,363.21 842.28

Raw materials in transit 3,922.77 3,849.79

Finished goods 877.17 1,028.84

Work in progress 431.32 494.75

Stores and spares 1,494.57 1,279.73

 8,089.04  7,495.39 

The amount of inventory recognised as an expense during the year is `22,803.13 Lakhs (Previous year `24,205.92 lakhs) 

9  Current Investments  
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

(Quoted)
Investment in Mutual Funds

246,634 (31 March 2024: Nil) Units of `1,000/- each of Edelweiss Bharat Bond ETF 2025 3,179.51 -

63,661 (31 March 2024: 72,530) Units of `1,000/- each of SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth 2,582.07 2,741.11

7,528,554 (31 March 2024: 6,421,876) Units of `10/- each of Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund- Direct Growth 2,962.69 2,336.68

9,609,558 (31 March 2024 8,759,991) Units of `10/- each of SBI Arbitrage Oppurtunity Fund- Direct 
Plan - Growth

3,393.42 2,867.48

12,117.69 7,945.26
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 12,117.69 7,945.26

Aggregate Market value of quoted investments 12,117.69 7,945.26

Aggregate amount of unquoted investment - -

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

Notes: 			 
(i) 	 Also, Refer note 42 	
(ii) 	 *Investment having maturity period of less than 12 months from March 31, 2025 i.e. the balance sheet date have been reclassified as ‘ Current Investment’ 
during the year, if applicable. 
(iii) 	 Refer Note 46 B information on investment pledged as security by company. 

10  * Trade receivables

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Receivable from related parties

-	 Unsecured, considered good  0.00  150.57 

Receivable from others

-	 Unsecured considered good  877.67  1,478.12 

-	 Less Allowances for doubtful trade receivables  (1.42)  (4.31)

-	 Credit impaired  5.54  11.96 

-	 Less Allowances for expected credit loss  (5.54)  (11.96)

 876.25  1,624.38 
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(i)	 The credit period allowed on sales generally vary, on case to case basis, in case of domestic sales, based on market conditions, maximum 
credit period allowed is 5 days and 90 days against letter of credit (2023-24- 5 days and 90 days against letter of credit) in case of domestic sale.

(ii) 	 Ageing of allowances of credit impairment trade receivables

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

 -	 Less than 180 days 

 -	 More than 180 days   5.54  11.96 

5.54  11.96 

(iii) 	 Movement in expected credit loss allowance 

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

 - 	 Balance at the beginning of the year  4.31  3.53 

 - 	 Reversal of provision during year  (2.89)  -   

 - 	 Provision provided during the year  -    0.78 

 - 	 Balance at the end of the year 1.42  4.31 

(iv) 	 Age of Receivables:

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

 (a)	 Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good  
 Not Due 693.88  1,531.65 

 Less than 6 months  183.79  89.53 

 6 months to 1 year -  7.51 

 1 to 2 years  -    -   

 2 to 3 years  -    -   

 More than 3 years  -    -   

 877.67 1,628.69   
 (b)	 Disputed Trade receivables – considered good  

 Not Due  -    -   

 Less than 6 months  -    -   

 6 months to 1 year  -    -   

 1 to 2 years  -    -   

 2 to 3 years  -    -   

 More than 3 years  -    -   

 (c) 	 Disputed Trade receivables – credit impaired 
 Less than 6 months  -    -   

 6 months to 1 year  -    -   

 1 to 2 years  -    7.24 

 2 to 3 years  2.41 

 More than 3 years  3.13  4.73 

 5.54  11.96 
		  #Refer note 42 
	  	 Note: No trade  receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person or from firms or 

private company in which any directors is a partner, a director or a member. 
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11 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Cash on hand  0.44  0.49 

Balance with banks :

- 	 In current accounts  23.83  31.71 

-	 In cash credit accounts  3.66  0.44 

- 	 In deposit accounts with origingal maturity of three months or less  49.03  46.46 

 76.96  79.09 

# Refer note 42

11A  	Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Other bank balances

- 	 Earmarked balances with banks*  88.26  91.64 

-	� Deposits with original maturity more than three months 
but less than twelve months

 193.41  187.05 

 281.67  278.70 

		  * Earmarked balances with banks includes `88.26 Lakhs (March 31, 2024:`91.64 Lakhs) pertaining to unpaid dividend accounts with banks
	  	 # Refer note 42 	

12 Financial Asset

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Current 

Loans

Financial assets at amortized cost

Loans receivables considered good - Unsecured

- 	 Loans to employees  3.01  3.85 

 3.01  3.85 

Loan or advances to director, kmp promoters and other related parties is nil

13 Other financial  assets 

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Financial assets at amortized cost

-	 Interest Accrued but not due  2.77  0.84 

-	 Advances to employees  2.47  5.30 

-	 Others  4.91  5.45 

Financial assets at Fair value through Profit or Loss

-	 Derivative Financial Instruments  -    5.65 

 10.15  17.24 
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14 Other current  assets 
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

 Advances to Suppliers 

 -	 For supply of goods and rendering of services  737.88  305.65 

Prepaid expenses  7.44  12.42 

Balances and Deposits with Government Authorities  159.26  298.26 

Balances and Deposits with Others  52.02  12.76 

Deferred Expense for Employee benefits  0.14  0.17 

 956.74  629.25 

15 Equity share Capital 

Particulars As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

 Authorised 

 150,000,000 Equity Shares, `10/- each 

 (31st March 2024 : 150,000,000 )  15,000.00  15,000.00 

 15,000.00  15,000.00 

 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up  

 80,363,746 Equity Shares, `10/- each 

 (31st March 2024 : 80,363,746)   8,036.37  8,036.37 

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital  8,036.37  8,036.37 

(a)	 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

 Number of shares  ` in Lakhs  Number of shares ` in Lakhs 

 At the beginning of the period  8,03,63,746  8,036.37  8,03,63,746  8,036.37 

 Outstanding at the end of period  8,03,63,746  8,036.37  8,03,63,746  8,036.37 

(b) 	 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

 	 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of H10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share held.

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entiled to receive any of the remaining 
assests of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts 
exist currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting 
except in case of interim dividend.
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	 Shareholding of Promoter	

Promoters Name

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

No. of  
Shares

% of total  
shares

% change  
during the 

year

No. of  
Shares

% of total  
shares"

% change  
during the 

year

1 Vardhman Textiles Limited  5,68,51,144 70.74%  -    5,68,51,144 70.74%  -   

2 Devakar Investment And Trading Company 
Private Limited

 25,93,484 3.23%  -    25,93,484 3.23%  -   

3 Vardhman Holdings Limited  7,33,762 0.91%  -    7,33,762 0.91%  -   

4 VTL Investments Limited  70,330 0.09%  -    70,330 0.09%  -   

5 Santon Finance & Investment Company 
Limited

 100 0.00%  -    100 0.00%  -   

6 Mahavir Spinning Mills Private Limited  100 0.00%  -    100 0.00%  -   

7 Flamingo Finance & Investment Company 
Limited

 100 0.00%  -    100 0.00%  -   

8 Ramaniya Finance & Investment Company 
Limited

 100 0.00%  -    100 0.00%  -   

9 Adishwar Enterprises LLP  10 0.00%  -    10 0.00%  -   

10 Shri Paul Oswal  10 0.00%  -    10 0.00%  -   

11 Shakun Oswal  10 0.00%  -    10 0.00%  -   

12 Sachit Jain  10 0.00%  -    10 0.00%  -   

13 Suchita Jain  -   0.00%  -    -   0.00%  -   

14 Soumya Jain  -   0.00%  -    -   0.00%  -   

15 Sagrika Jain  -   0.00%  -    -   0.00%  -   

16 Amber Syndicate  -   0.00%  -    -   0.00%  -   

17 Paras Syndicate  -   0.00%  -    -   0.00%  -   

18 Eastern Trading Company  -   0.00%  -    -   0.00%  -   

19 Northern Trading Company  -   0.00%  -    -   0.00%  -   

20 SP Oswal Trust (Shri Paul Oswal, Trustee) - 0.00% - - 0.00% -

21 Mrs. Shakun Oswal Trust (Shri Paul Oswal, 
Trustee)

- 0.00% - - 0.00% -

(c) 	 Shares held by holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

 	 Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/
associates are as below:

Particulars
As at 

 31st March, 2025
(` in Lakhs)

As at  
31st March, 2024

(` in Lakhs)

Vardhman Textiles Limited, the holding Company 
5,68,51,144 (previous year 5,68,51,144) Equity Shares of `10/- each fully paid

5,685.11 5,685.11

VTL Investments Limited, the fellow subsidiary of Company 70,330 (previous year 70,330) 
Equity Shares of `10/- each fully paid

7.03 7.03
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(d) 	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Names of Shareholders
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

 No. of shareholders  % of Shareholding  No. of shareholders  % of Shareholding 

Vardhman Textiles Ltd.  5,68,51,144  70.74  5,68,51,144  70.74 

(e) 	� Aggregate number  and class of share alloted as fully paid-up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received 
in cash, bonus shares and shares bought back for the period of five year immediately preceding the balance sheet date:

Year As at 
 31st March, 2025

As at  
31st March, 2024

Equity shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract (s) without payment being 
received in cash

- -

Equity shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - -

Equity shares bought back by the Company - -

16 Other Equity

Particulars
As at 

 31st March, 2025
(` in Lakhs)

As at  
31st March, 2024

(` in Lakhs)

Capital redemption reserve  2,816.88  2,816.88 

Securities premium  -    -   

General reserve  4,006.15  4,006.15 

Retained earnings  8,883.93  9,309.09 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income  102.69  117.40 

Other items of other comprehensive income  19.34  11.62 

Total other equity  15,828.98  16,261.13 

Nature and purpose of reserve

(i)	 Capital redemption reserve: Capital Redemption Reserve is a statutory , non-distributable reserve into which amounts are transferred 
following the redemption of capital or purchase of a company’s own shares.

(ii)	 General Reserve: General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As 
the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, 
items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

(iii)	 Retained earnings: Retained earnings represents amount that can be distributed by the Company to its equity shareholders is 
determined based on the financial statements of the Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act 2013.

(iv)	 Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income : Reserve for equity instruments through other 
comprehensive income represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income, net of amount reclassified to retained earnings when those assets have been disposed off.

(v)	 Reserve for other items of other comprehensive income : Other items of other comprehensive income comprises income/
(Expense) represent the acturial gain/(loss) recognised during the year (net of taxes)
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17  Lease liabilities (Non Current)* 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

- 	 Lease liability  0.08  0.08 

 0.08  0.08 

Refer note 39 & 42

18 Provisions (Non-Current)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

Provision for employee benefits 

- 	 Provision for compensated absences  48.44  52.50 

 48.44  52.50 

Refer note 36.3

19 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 Deferred tax liabilities (net)  959.70  671.43 

 959.70  671.43 

Refer note no - 41

20 Other Non Current liabilities 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

- 	 Other liabilities due to employees  14.75  11.11 

 14.75  11.11 

21  Borrowings (current)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

-	 From banks (Secured at amortised cost) - -

- 	 From banks (unsecured at amortised cost)  17.69  113.57 

 17.69  113.57 

No current assets pledged with the banks against the borrowings, hence no stock statement provided to banks

Refer note no - 46B
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22 Trade payables

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 44)  224.75  26.91 

 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  6,494.97  4,262.06 

 6,719.72  4,288.97 

 Ageing of Trade payables:

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 (i)	 MSME: 
 Less than 1 year  224.75  26.91 

 1-2 years  -    -   

 2-3 years  -    -   

 More than 3 years  -    -   

 224.75  26.91 
 (ii)	 Others: 

 Less than 1 year  6,468.64  4,220.44 

 1-2 years  2.01  27.15 

 2-3 years  18.13  10.79 

 More than 3 years  6.19  3.68 

6,494.97 4,262.06

Total 6,719.72 4,288.97

23 Other financial liabilities (current): 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

- 	 Due to employees  230.18  217.01 

- 	 Securities Received  10.67  11.97 

- 	 Others  373.58  396.38 

- 	 Unclaimed Dividend*  88.26  91.64 

Financial liabilities at Fair value through Profit or Loss

-	 Derivative Financial Instruments  90.98  -   

 793.67  717.00 

Refer note no - 42
*Unclaimed dividend does not include any amount due and outstanding required to be credited to the Investors Education and Protection Fund u/s 125 of 
Companies Act, 2013. 	
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24  Provisions 	

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

 Provision to Employee benefits 

- 	 Gratuity (Net)  -    18.41 

- 	 Compensated absences  16.11  27.24 

 16.11  45.65 

Refer note no - 36

25 Current tax liabilities (net)*

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

- 	� Provision for taxation 
(Net of advance taxes `17,985.02 Lakhs, Previous year `17,749.86 Lakhs )

 2,279.80  2,352.73 

 2,279.80  2,352.73 

*Includes provision of `2,489.81 Lacs (March 31,2024 `2,489.81 Lacs) on account of some issues for which refund received by company as per assessment 
order of appellate authorities but Income Tax department is in appeal with higher authorities so company taking a conservative view has retained the 
provision in books as at March 31,2025.	

26 Other current liabilities	

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

- 	 Withholding and other tax payables  58.35  201.89 

- 	 Trade deposits and advances  67.21  8.37 

- 	 Others liabilities  22.33  19.68 

 147.89  229.95 

27 Revenue from operations 	

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

Sale of products

Finished Goods (Fibre & Tow)  27,539.14  29,685.30 

Trading Goods (Raw Materials)  562.03  -   

Other Operating Revenue  49.44  62.51 

Export Incentives  5.92  0.06 

 28,156.53  29,747.87 
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28 Other Income 	

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortized cost  29.54  12.57 

Interest income on employee loans  0.17  0.15 

Net Gain on sale of investment carried at fair value through Profit or loss (Net of fair valuation  
gain / loss upto previous years)

 535.94  575.40 

Net Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss  665.63  626.28 

Insurance claims received  29.49  20.30 

Sundry balances/Liabilities / Provisons no longer required, written back (net).  126.31  22.61 

Other non operating income  8.47  7.59 

Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)  24.69  4.17 

Net foreign exchange gain  140.89  133.66 

 1,561.13  1,402.72 

29 Cost of Materials Consumed  	

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

Inventory at the beginning of the year  842.28  1,971.82 

Add : Purchases  19,614.18  18,410.89 

 20,456.46  20,382.71 

Less: inventory at the end of the year  1,363.21  842.28 

Cost of raw material consumed  19,093.25  19,540.43 

Raw materials consumed (Major Heads)

Acrylonitrile *  17,285.48  17,414.75 

Vinyl Acetate Monomer *  1,134.97  1,319.26 

Others  672.80  806.42 

 19,093.25  19,540.43 

30 Purchases Of Stock-In-Trade 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

  Acrylonitrile  / Vinyl Acetate Monomer  553.48  -   

 553.48  -   
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31 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work-in-progress   	

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

 Inventories at the beginning of the year 

   Finished Goods  1,028.84 690.02 

   Work-in-Progress  494.75  632.33 

1,523.58 1,322.35

 Less - Inventories at the end of the year 

   Finished Goods 877.17 1,028.84

   Work-in-Progress 431.32 494.75

1,308.49 1,523.58

 Net (increase) / decrease in opening and closing stock  215.09  (201.24)

Stock Particulars of Finished Goods

Fibre and Tow (MT) 587.09 712.72

32  Employee Benefits 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

 Salaries, wages and other allowances  1,877.74  1,855.62 

 Amortization of Deferred Employee benefits  0.17  0.15 

 Contribution to Provident and other funds  109.03  103.31 

 Staff welfare expense  54.15  45.30 

 2,041.09  2,004.37 

33 Finance Costs 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

Interest on

-	  Working capital  2.07 1.99 

- 	 Others 0.12  6.01 

Interest on lease liability  0.01  0.01 

Other borrowing cost  22.71 20.67 

 24.91 28.67
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34 Other Expenses 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2025

Year ended 
31st March, 2024

Power and fuel  3,020.03  3,916.11 

Water charges  360.59  423.79 

Consumption of stores and spares  353.41  410.15 

Repair and maintenance

-	 Machinery  686.84  712.76 

-	 Building  75.94  83.00 

-	 Other  9.15  17.14 

Rates and taxes  243.59  294.65 

Insurance  55.88  48.48 

Payment to auditor

Audit fee  3.00  3.00 

Tax audit fee  0.50  0.50 

Reimbursement of expenses  2.37  2.20 

In other capacity  0.18  0.08 

Legal and professional  34.50  32.04 

Expected credit losses  -    0.78 

Allowances for doubtful trade receivables  -    11.96 

Bad debts written off  -    -   

Excess provision Written off  0.03  0.15 

Loss on discard of Property, Plant and Equipment  8.78  18.39 

Loss on sale of stores and spares  -    7.93 

Expenditure of CSR activities (refer note 45)  36.24  93.63 

Allocation of common corpoarte expenses  75.97  75.97 

Selling expenses  735.85  748.69 

Miscellaneous expenses  181.91  178.91 

 5,884.76  7,080.30 

35 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:
A.	 Contingent Liabilities.

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

a. 	 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

Sales tax, excise duty, vat etc* 42.34 42.34

Income-tax** 56.54 122.53

	 *Amount deposited H2.62 Lakhs (31 March 2024: H2.62 Lakhs)
	 **Amount deposited H22.26 Lakhs (31 March 2024: H38.18 Lakhs)
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35   Contingent Liabilities and Commitments: (Contd..)
b.	 Liability on account of outstanding bank guarantees and letter of credit of H147.75 Lakhs (previous year H3814.27 Lakhs).

c.	 The amounts shown above represents the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties 
and possible reimbursements are dependent on the outcome of the different legal processes which have been invoked by the 
Company or the claimants as the case may be and therefore cannot be predicted accurately or relate to a present obligation that 
arise from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate 
cannot be made. The Company has been advised that it has strong legal positions against such disputes.

B. 	 Commitments

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for (net of advances).

375.67 99.22

C.	 The details of dues of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, duty of Custom, duty 
of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company which have not been deposited as on 31 
March 2025 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the Statute Nature of 
the Dues

Forum where Dispute is 
pending

Period to which the amount 
relates (various years 
covering the period)

Amount* 
( ` Lakhs)

Amount unpaid
(` In Lakhs)

The Punjab VAT Act, 2005 VAT and CST VAT Tribunal, Punjab 2016-17 10.47 7.85

The Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Assistant Commissioner/ 
Superintendent

2005-06 To 2009-10 and 
2016-17 to 2017-18

31.87 31.87

The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax CIT(A) 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17, 
2020-21, 2022-23

56.54 11.44

* Amount as per dispute/as per demand orders including interest and penalty wherever quantified in the Order

36. Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 Employee Benefits:
36.1 	Defined Contribution Plans:

Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss are as under:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Superannuation Fund - 0.25

Provident fund administered through Regional Provident Fund Commissioner 93.42 88.65

National Pension Scheme 15.61 14.40

	 The expenses incurred on account of the above defined contribution plans have been included in Note No. 32 “Employee Benefits 
Expenses” under the head “Contribution to provident and other funds”

36.2 	Defined Benefit Plan:

	 The Company sponsors funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. This defined benefit plan of gratuity is administered 
by a separate trust that is legally separate from the entity. The trustees are required by the law to act in the interest of the trust and all 
the relevant stakeholders i.e. active employees, inactive employees, retired employees and employers, etc. The trust is responsible for 
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investment policy with regard to the assets of the trust. The Company has a gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the 
benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the 
Company on retirement, separation, death or permanent disablement, in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
or as per the Company’s plan, whichever is more beneficial.

	 These plans typically expose the company to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

i.	 Salary Risk- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations 
will also increase the liability.

ii.	 Investment Risk – If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount 
rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

iii.	 Interest Risk- A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase 
in the plan assets.

iv.	 Longevity risk- The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of 
plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase 
the plan’s liability.

	 The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the Company’s financial statements 
as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

a.	 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows :

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Present value of defined benefit obligation, as at the beginning of the year 275.26 227.30

Current service cost 23.57 21.76

Interest cost 19.87 16.73

Actuarial (gain)/ loss (8.63) 18.92

Actual Benefits paid (48.64) (9.45)

Past service cost including curtailment gains / losses - -

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 261.43 275.26

b.	 Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows :
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Fair Value of Plan Assets, as at beginning of the year 256.84 237.39

Expected return on Plan Assets 18.54 17.47

Contribution by the employer 18.41 -

Withdrawal - (10.10)

Return on plan assets, greater/(lesser) than expected return 1.69 12.08

Actual Benefits Paid - -

Fair Value of Plan Assets, as at end of the year 295.48 256.84
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c. 	 Net (liability) / assets recognized in balance sheet:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024

Present Value of the obligation at end of the year 261.43 275.26

Fair value of plan assets 295.48 256.84

Unfunded (Liability) / Assets in Balance Sheet 34.05 (18.42)

d.	 Constitution of plan assets
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024

Quoted:

Corporate Bonds 78.85 78.86

Government of India Securities 0.00 0.00

State government/State government guaranteed securities 98.92 108.34

Mutual funds 109.94 59.99

Unquoted:

Cash at bank and receivables 7.77 9.65

Total plan assets 295.48 256.84

e. 	 Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Current service cost 23.57 21.76

Net Interest expense 1.33 (0.74)

Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 24.90 21.02

	 The current service cost, past service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in Note 32 “Employee Benefits 
Expenses” under the head “Salaries and Wages”

f.	  Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI):
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024

Actuarial (Gain)/Losses on arising from Change in Demographic Assumption - -

Actuarial (Gain)/Losses on arising from Change in Financial Assumption 3.58 2.06

Actuarial (Gain)/Losses on arising from Experience Adjustment (12.20) 16.87

Actuarial (gain)/losses arising for the year on assets (1.69) (12.07)

Amount recognized in OCI (10.31) 6.84

Annual Report 2024-25
Vardhman Acrylics Limited84



Notes to Financial Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (All amounts in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

g.	 The quantitative sensitivity analysis on net liability recognized on account of change in significant assumptions:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024

Discount Rate

0.50% Increase (7.82) (7.32)

0.50% decrease 8.34 7.80

Future Salary increase

0.50% Increase 8.08 7.64

0.50% decrease (7.77) (7.23)

	 All other assumptions are considered constant.

	 As per Actuarial Certificate, sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change has not 
been calculated.

	 There were no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

h.	 Maturity profile of Defined benefit Obligations: 	  	
(` In Lakhs)

Year Amount

0 to 1 Year 38.48

1 to 2 Year 34.47

2 to 3 Year 21.57

3 to 4 Year 29.74

4 to 5 Year 11.31

5 to 6 Year 23.60

6 Year onwards 102.27

i.	 The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 12.30 years 
(31 March 2024: 12.41 years)

j.	 The expected contribution to the trust during the next year is H25.55 Lakhs (previous year H27.00 Lakhs).

k.	 The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations are as follows:

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024

Discount Rate (per annum) 6.99 7.22

Weighted average rate of increase in compensation levels 6.00 6.00

Retirement Age (Years) 58/60 58/60

Method Used Projected Unit
 Credit Method

Projected Unit
 Credit Method

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM
 (2012 - 14)

100% of IALM  
(2012 - 14)
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Particulars As at 
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024

Attrition at Ages Withdrawal Rate (%) Withdrawal Rate (%)

Up to 30 Years 5.00 5.00

From 31 to 44 years 5.00 5.00

Above 44 years 5.00 5.00

	 Mortality & Morbidity rates - 100% of IALM (2012-14) rates have been assumed which also includes the allowance for disability benefits.

36.3 	Other long term employee benefit

	 (i) 	 Amount recognised in profit and loss in Note No. 32 “Employee benefit expense” under the head

		  “Salaries, wages and other allowances” towards leave encashment is H9.02 Lakhs (Previous year H26.62 Lakhs).

(ii) 	 The amount payable as at the end of the reporting period is as under:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024

Current 16.11 27.24

Non-Current 48.44 52.50

37. 	 Segment Information
	 The Company is primarily in the business of manufacturing, purchase and sale of “Acrylic Fibre and Tow. The Chairman, The Vice Chairman 

and Whole Time Director of the Company, which has been identified as being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), evaluates 
the Company’s performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single 
unit. Therefore, there is only one reportable segment for the Company.

	 Revenue from operations (Finished Goods)
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended
31 March, 2025

For the year ended
31 March, 2024

Domestic 27,409.62 29,683.73

Overseas 129.52 1.57

	 Non-Current Segment Assets
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2025

As at  
31 March, 2024

Within India 12,451.70 14,707.33

Outside India - -

Domestic information includes sales to customers located in India

Overseas information includes sales to customers located outside India.

Non-current segment assets include property, plant and equipments, capital work in progress and other non-current assets.

Revenue from major customers
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There are three customers (previous year three customers) that accounts for more than 10% of Company’s revenue.

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended
31 March, 2025

For the year ended
31 March, 2024

-	  Amount of sales 14,460.63 14,684.43

38. 	 Related Party transactions:
	 In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on “Related Party Disclosures”, name of the related party, related party relationship, 

transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place 
during reported periods, are:

Related party and their relationship:-

	 (a)	 Key Management personnel

(i) Managing director Mr. B. K. Choudhary (upto 31.03.2024)

(ii) Whole Time Director Mr. Vivek Gupta

(iii) Non-executive directors and Independent Directors Ms. Parakh Oswal

Mr. Bhooshan Lal Uppal

Mr. Anil Kumar

Mr. Sandeep Kapur

Mr. Sanjeev Jain

(iv) Non-executive directors and non-independent directors Mr. Shri Paul Oswal

Mr. Sachit Jain

Mrs. Suchita Jain

Mr. B. K. Choudhary (w.e.f. 01.04.2024)

(v) Chief Financial Officer Mr. Raish Shaikh

(vi) Company secretary Mr. Satin Katyal

	 b)	  Other related parties

S.No. Nature of relationship Name of related party

1 Holding Company Vardhman Textiles Limited

2 Fellow Subsidiaries VTL Investments Limited

3 Associates of Holding Company Vardhman Yarns & Threads Limited
Vardhman Spinning and General Mills Limited
Vardhman Special Steels Limited

(c) Post-Employment Benefit Plans Trust VAL GRATUITY TRUST FUND
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		  Transactions with related parties.
(` In Lakhs)

Sr. 
No. Particulars

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries. Key Management
 Personnel (KMP) Others Total

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2025

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2024

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2025

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2024

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2025

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2024

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2025

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2024

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2025

For the 
year 

ended 
31 

March 
2024

1 Sale of goods (Net of 
discount)

9,890.83 10,720.52 - - - - - - 9,890.83 10,720.52

2 Purchase of goods 7.10 66.40 - - - - - - 7.10 66.40

3 Purchase of RODTEP 
License

212.04 248.58 - - - - - - 212.04 248.58

4 Reimbursement of 
Common Corporate 
Expense (Exclu. Tax)

75.97 75.97 - - - - - - 75.97 75.97

5 Interest Received 
from ICDs and Current 
account balances

- - - - - - - - - -

6 Dividend Paid 1,137.02 1,421.28 1.41 1.76 - - 66.55 83.19 1,204.98 1,506.23

7 ***Contractual 
remuneration

- - - - 115.97 175.16 - - 115.97 175.16

7(a) **Contractual 
remuneration 
outstanding as on last 
day of financial year

- - - - 23.77 19.80 - - 23.77 19.80

8 Reimbursement of 
Exp. Paid

1.18 0.60 - - - - - - 1.18 0.60

9 Reimbursement of 
Exp. Received

- 0.24 - - - - - - - 0.24

10 Contribution to 
Employee Benefit 
Trust

- - - - - - 18.41 - 18.41 -

11 Withdrawal from 
Employee Benefit 
Trust

- 10.10 - 10.10

	 *** As the liabilities for gratuity, compensated absences are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount 
pertaining to key managerial personnel has not been included.

	 *** The Amount includes provision for employee benefits (except Gratuity and compensated absences as stated above) but 
excludes sitting fees paid / payable to non-executive directors. Perquisites values are considered as per the provisions of Income 
tax act, 1961.
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38. 	 Related Party transactions: (Contd..)
Outstanding Balances of Related parties

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31 March, 2025

As at
 31 March, 2024

Receivables NIL 150.57

Payables NIL NIL

Total NIL 150.57

39.	 Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 116 “Leases”: -
	 The Company has lease contracts for Land. Leases of land have lease terms of 99 years. The Company’s obligations under its 

leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the 
leased assets.

(a)	 Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2025:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Land

Balance as on 01 April 2024 1,112.18

Addition -

Deletion -

Depreciation (14.50)

Balance as on 31 March 2025 1,097.68

	 The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement 
of Profit and Loss.

(b)	 The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2025:

Particulars Amount(in Lakhs)

Current lease liabilities -

Non-Current lease liabilities 0.08

Total 0.08

(c)	 Following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2025:

Particulars Amount(in Lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the year 0.08

Finance cost accrued during the year 0.01

Payment of lease liabilities (0.01)

Balance at the end of the year 0.08
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(d)	 The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:

Particulars Amount(in Lakhs)

Depreciation Expenses on Right of use Assets 14.50

Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.01

Total Amount Recognised in Profit and Loss 14.51

40. 	 Earning Per Share

Particulars As at
31 March, 2025

As at
 31 March, 2024

Basic earnings per share (INR) 1.47 2.18

Diluted earnings per share (INR) 1.47 2.18

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic earning 
per share (` in Lakhs)

1,182.14 1,753.56

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of basic earning per share 
(numbers)

80,363,746 80,363,746

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating dilutive 
earning per share (` in Lakhs)

1,182.14 1,753.56

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of dilutive earning per share 
(numbers)

80,363,746 80,363,746

	 The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity, if any.

41.	 Income Tax:
	 The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet.

41.1.	Deferred tax liabilities (N
(` In Lakhs)

2024-25 Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

being opening 
adjustment to 

change in tax rate

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing 
Balance

A. Deferred tax assets

Expenses deductible in future years 37.48 10.19 (45.13) 2.54

Others 24.19 (2.81) (3.36) 18.02

Total 61.67 7.38 (48.49) 20.56

B. Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (587.58) (0.08) (21.56) (609.22)

Investment in bonds, mutual funds and equity 
instruments

(111.90) (105.16) (95.10) (25.09) (337.25)

Others (33.62) (0.17) (33.79)

Total (733.10) (105.24) (116.83) (25.09) (980.26)

Net deferred tax liabilities (671.43) (97.86) (165.32) (25.09) (959.70)
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(` In Lakhs)

2023-24 Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
Profit or Loss 

being opening 
adjustment to 

change in tax rate

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Closing 
Balance

A. Deferred tax assets

Expenses deductible in future years 37.48 - - 37.48

Others 12.09 8.50 3.60 24.19

Total 49.57 8.50 3.60 - 61.67

B. Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (646.98) 59.40  (587.58)

Investment in bonds, mutual funds and equity 
instruments

(66.40) (45.50) - (111.90)

Others (32.48) (1.14) - (33.62)

Total (745.86) 12.76 - (733.10)

Net deferred tax liabilities (696.29) 8.50 16.36 - (671.43)

		  Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they are governed by the same taxation laws.

41.2	 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Current tax

In respect of the current year 159.63 406.37

Deferred tax   

In respect of the current year 263.18 (24.87)

Total income tax expense recognised 422.81 381.50

	 The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Profit before tax 1,604.95 2,135.06

Tax at the Indian Tax Rate of 25.168% / 25.168 % 403.93 537.35

Differential tax rate on capital gain on sale of investments/ fair valuation on investment (92.61) (164.88)

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 16.82 20.86

Deferred tax adjustments earlier year due to change in tax rate. 97.84 (8.50)

Others (3.17) (3.33)

Total 422.81 381.50

Current tax 159.63 406.37

Deferred tax 263.18 (24.87)

Total tax provided 422.81 381.50
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41.3	 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income 

Net fair value gain on investment in equity shares at FVTOCI (25.09) -

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (2.60) 1.72

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (27.69) 1.72

42. Financial Instruments and Risk Management
42 (a) Capital Management

	 The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders 
through optimization of debt and equity balance. The capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to maintain optimum 
capital structure to reduce cost of capital and to maximize the shareholder value.

	 The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements 
of the financial covenants which otherwise would permit the banks to immediately call loans and borrowings. In order to maintain 
or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue 
new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital The Company’s gearing ratio was as follows:

The following table provides detail of the debts and equity at the end of the reporting years:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31 March, 2025

As at
31 March, 2024

Borrowings 17.69 113.58

Cash and cash equivalent 358.63 357.79

Net Debt (340.94) (244.21)

Total Equity 23,865.35 24,297.50

Net debt to equity ratio - -

42 (b) Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2025 are as follows:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Amortized 
cost FVTPL    FVTOCI    

Total 
carrying 

cost

Total fair 
value

Financial Assets:      

Cash and cash equivalents 358.63 - - 358.63 358.63

Investments - 18,215.86 340.21 18,556.07 18,556.07

Trade receivables 876.25 - - 876.25 876.25

Loans 5.79 - - 5.79 5.79
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Particulars Amortized 
cost FVTPL    FVTOCI    

Total 
carrying 

cost

Total fair 
value

Other financial assets 100.62 - - 100.62 100.62

Total 1,341.29 18,215.86 340.21 19,897.36 19,897.36

Financial Liabilities:      

Trade payables 6,719.72 - - 6,719.72 6,719.72

Short Term Borrowings 17.69 - - 17.69 17.69

Other financial liabilities 793.75 - - 793.75 793.75

Total 7,531.16 - - 7,531.16 7,531.16

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2024 are as follows:
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Amortized 
cost FVTPL    FVTOCI    Total  

carrying cost
Total fair 

value

Financial Assets:      

Cash and cash equivalents 357.79 - - 357.79 357.79

Investments - 16,556.35 329.83 16,886.18 16,886.18

Trade receivables 1,624.38 - - 1,624.38 1,624.38

Loans 4.34 - - 4.34 4.34

Other financial assets 53.01 - - 53.01 53.01

Total 2,039.52 16,556.35 329.83 18,925.70 18,925.70

Financial Liabilities:      

Trade payables 4,288.97 - - 4,288.97 4,288.97

Short Term Borrowings 113.58 - - 113.58 113.58

Other financial liabilities 717.09 - - 717.09 717.09

Total 5,119.64 - - 5,119.64 5,119.64

Carrying value of the financial assets and financial liabilities designated at amortised cost approximates its fair value.

	 Fair value hierarchy

	 The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value and have been grouped into Level 1, 
Level 2 and Level 3 below:

	 As at 31 March 2025
(` In Lakhs)

Financial Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments in Mutual Funds/ Bonds 18,215.86 - 18,215.86

Investments in Quoted Equity Instruments - - - -

Investments in Unquoted Equity Instruments - - 340.21 340.21

Foreign Currency forward contracts - - - -

Total 18,215.86 - 340.21 18,556.07

Financial Liabilities

Foreign Currency forward contracts - 90.98 - 90.98
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	 As at 31 March 2024
(` In Lakhs)

Financial Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments in Mutual Funds/ Bonds 16,556.35 - - 16,556.35

Investments in Quoted Equity Instruments - - - -

Investments in Unquoted Equity Instruments - - 329.83 329.83

Foreign Currency forward contracts - 5.65 - 5.65

Total 16,556.35 5.65 329.83 16,891.83

Financial Liabilities     

Foreign Currency forward contracts - - - -

	 Level 1:

	 Quoted prices in the active market. This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices in 
the active market.

	 Level 2:

	 Valuation techniques with observable inputs. This level of hierarchy includes items measured using inputs other than quoted prices 
included within Level 1 that are observable for such items, either directly or indirectly.

	 Level 3:

	 Valuation techniques with unobservable inputs. This level of hierarchy includes items measured using inputs that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair value determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions 
that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instruments nor based on available 
market data.

Sensitivity of Level 3 financial instruments are insignificant.

	 The fair value of the financial instruments are determined at the amount that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction 
between market participants.

	 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

	 Investments in mutual funds: Fair value is determined by reference to quotes from the financial institutions, i.e. net asset value (NAV) for 
investments in mutual funds declared by mutual fund house.

	 Investment in preference shares: Fair value is determined by reference to quotes from fund houses/portfolio management services 
companies/respective issuer of preference shares, i.e. value of investments.

	 Derivative contracts: The Company has entered into various foreign currency contracts to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign 
exchange rates. These financial exposures are managed in accordance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures. 
Fair value of derivative financial instruments are determined using valuation techniques based on information derived from observable 
market data, i.e., mark to market values determined by the Authorized Dealers Banks.
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	 Quoted equity investments: Fair value is derived from quoted market prices in active markets.

	 Unquoted equity investments: Fair value is derived on the basis of net asset value approach, in this approach the net asset value is used 
to capture the fair value of these investments.

	 Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars Unlisted equity 
instruments

As at 01 April 2023 306.93

Purchases 0.00

Gain/ (loss) recognised in OCI 22.90

As at 31 March 2024 329.83

Purchases 0.00

Gain/ (loss) recognised in OCI 10.38

As at 31 March 2025 340.21

	 Financial risk management

	 The financial assets of the company include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and bank balances that derive 
directly from its operations.

	 The principal financial liabilities of the company, other than derivatives, include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and the 
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the day to day operations of the company.

The company is mainly exposed to the following risks that arise from financial instruments:

(i)	 Market risk

(ii)	 Liquidity risk

(iii)	 Credit risk

	 The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks and that advises on financial risks and the appropriate 
financial risk governance framework for the Company.

This note explains the risks which the company is exposed to and policies and framework adopted by the company to manage these risks:

	 (i)	 Market Risk
	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and investment risk.

		  (a) Foreign currency risk

	 The company imports certain assets and material from outside India. The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and foreign 
currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently the company is 
exposed to foreign currency risk and the results of the company may be affected as the rupee appreciates/ depreciates against 
foreign currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises from the future probable transactions and recognised assets and liabilities 
denominated in a currency other than company’s functional currency.
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	 The company measures the risk through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows and manages its foreign currency 
risk by hedging appropriately. The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts/options to mitigate the risk of changes in 
exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.

	 The Carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of 
the reporting periods expressed in foreign currency are as follows:	

(FC In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

a) 	 Exposure on account of Financial Assets

Trade receivables (A)

-	 In USD - -

-	 In Euro  -  -

-	 In JPY - -

Amount hedged through derivate forwards contracts (B)

-	 In USD - -

-	 In Euro  -  -

-	 In JPY - -

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Assets C=A-B

-	 In USD - -

-	 In Euro  -  -

-	 In JPY - -

b) Exposure on account of Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables and Loans (D)

-	 In USD 73.60 47.94

-	 In Euro - -

-	 In JPY - -

Amount Hedged through derivative forward contracts (E)

-	 In USD (85.91) (67.88)

-	 In Euro - -

-	 In JPY - -

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Liabilities (F=D-E)

-	 In USD - -

-	 In Euro - -

-	 In JPY - -

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency(F-C)

-	 In USD - -

-	 In Euro - -

-	 In JPY - -

			   # Company uses derivative financial instruments exclusively for import of raw material
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The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Particulars 2024-25
(Average exchange rate)

2023-24
(Average exchange rate)

2024-25
(Year end rates)

2023-24
(Year end rates)

INR/USD 84.57 82.79 85.48 83.41

INR/EURO 90.78 83.66 92.06 90.04

INR/JPY 0.56 0.57 0.57 0.55

	 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

	 Any changes in the exchange rate of EURO and USD against INR is not expected to have significant impact on the Company’s 
profit or equity due to the less exposure of these currencies. Accordingly, a 10% appreciation/depreciation of the INR as indicated 
below, against the EURO and USD would have increased/reduced profit by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on 
the foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting 
period. The analysis assumes that all other variable remains constant:

Amount (INR in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2025

For the year ended
 31 March 2024

10% Strengthening/weakening of USD against INR - -

	 Foreign exchange derivative contracts

	 The Company uses derivative financial instruments exclusively for hedging financial risks that arise from its commercial business 
or financing activities. The company’s Corporate Treasury team measures the risk through a forecast of highly probable foreign 
currency cash flows and manages its foreign currency cash flows by appropriately hedging the transactions. When a derivative is 
entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the 
hedged exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions the derivatives cover the period of exposure from the point the cash flows 
of the transactions are forecasted up to the point of settlement of the resulting receivable or payable that is denominated in the 
foreign currency. All identified exposures are managed as per the policy duly approved by the Board of Directors.

	 The following table gives details in respect of outstanding foreign currency forward held by the company to mitigate the risk of 
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.	

(FC In Lakhs)

Particulars No. of deals As at
31 March, 2025 No. of deals As at

31 March, 2024

Contracts against Import

-	 In USD 12 85.91 12 67.88

-	 In EUR - - - -

-	 In JPY - - - -

	 Sensitivity on the above derivative contracts in respect of foreign currency exposure is insignificant.

		  (b)  Interest Rate Risk Management

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
debt obligations with floating interest rates.
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	 As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the income and operating cash flows are substantially independent 
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to 
the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates, which are included in interest bearing loans and borrowings in these 
financial statements. The company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest 
rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

	 At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instrument is at its fair value:

Particulars Carrying amount (INR In Lakhs)

Variable rate instruments As at 
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Short term borrowings 17.69 113.58

		  Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

	 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and 
borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on 
floating rate borrowings, as follows :

Particulars

For the year ended 31 
March, 2025 If loans 

interest rate decreases by 
1%

For the year ended 31 March, 
2024 If loans interest rate 

decreases by 1%

Increase/ (decrease) in profit before tax by 0.18 1.14

	 (c ) Security Price Risk Management

	 Exposure in equity

	 The Company is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments held by the Company and classified in the balance 
sheet as fair value through OCI.

	 Equity price sensitivity analysis

	 The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the year.

	 If the equity prices had been 5% higher / lower:

	 Other comprehensive income for 31st March 2025 would increase / decrease by `17.01 Lakhs (31 March 2024: increase / decrease 
by `16.49 Lakhs) as a result of the change in fair value of equity investment measured at FVTOCI.

	 Exposure in mutual funds

	 The Company manages the surplus funds majorly through investments in debt based mutual fund schemes. The price of investment 
in these mutual fund schemes is reflected though Net Asset Value (NAV) declared by the Asset Management Company on daily 
basis as reflected by the movement in the NAV of invested schemes. The Company is exposed to price risk on such Investments.

	 Mutual fund/Preference share price sensitivity analysis

	 The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on Mutual Fund Investment at the end of the year. If NAV has been 
1% higher / lower:

	 Profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 would increase / decrease by `182.16 Lakhs (31 March 2024 by ` 165.56 Lakhs) as a result 
of the changes in fair value of mutual fund investments.
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	 (ii)	 Liquidity Risk
	 The financial liabilities of the company, other than derivatives, include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The 

company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations.

	 The company monitors its risk of shortage of funds to meet the financial liabilities using a liquidity planning tool. The company 
plans to maintain sufficient cash and marketable securities to meet the obligations as and when fall due. The below is the detail 
of contractual maturities of the financial liabilities of the company at the end of each reporting period:

	 The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities and financial assets into relevant maturity groupings based on their 
contractual maturities:

Particulars As at
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Borrowings

Less than 1 year 17.69 113.58

More than 1 year and upto 3 years - -

More than 3 year and upto 5 years - -

More than 5 years - -

Trade Payables

Less than 1 year 6,693.39 4,247.35

1-2 years 2.01 27.15

2-3 years 18.13 10.79

More than 3 years 6.19 3.68

Other Financial liabilities

Less than 1 year 793.75 717.09

More than 1 year and upto 3 years - -

More than 3 year and upto 5 years - -

More than 5 years - -

	 Financial Assets

Particulars As at
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Investments

Less than 1 year 12,117.69 7,945.26

More than 1 year and upto 3 years 6,098.17 8,611.08

More than 3 year and upto 5 years - -

More than 5 years 340.21 329.83

Trade Receivables

Less than 1 year 876.25 1,624.38

More than 1 year and upto 3 years - -

More than 3 year and upto 5 years - -

More than 5 years - -

Cash and cash equivalents
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Particulars As at
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Less than 1 year 358.63 357.79

More than 1 year and upto 3 years - -

More than 3 year and upto 5 years - -

More than 5 years - -

Bank/FDR’s balances other than above

Less than 1 year

More than 1 year and upto 3 years 90.46 35.77

More than 3 year and upto 5 years - -

More than 5 years - -

Loans

Less than 1 year 3.01 3.85

More than 1 year and upto 3 years 2.77 0.49

More than 3 year and upto 5 years - -

More than 5 years - -

Other financial assets

Less than 1 year 10.15 17.24

More than 1 year and upto 3 years - -

More than 3 year and upto 5 years - -

More than 5 years - -

	 (iii)	 Credit Risk Management
	 Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure 

to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables which are typically unsecured. Credit risk on cash and 
bank balances is limited as the company generally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings 
assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units, bonds, fixed maturity 
plan etc. issued by institutions having proven track record.

	 The company assesses the creditworthiness of the customers internally to whom goods are sold on credit terms in the normal 
course of business. The credit limit of each customer is defined in accordance with this assessment

	 The impairment analysis is performed on client to client basis for the debtors that are past due at the end of each reporting date. 
The company has not considered an allowance for doubtful debts in case of Trade receivables that are past due but there has not 
been a significant change in the credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.

	 The following is the detail of revenues generated from top five customers of the company and allowance for lifetime  
expected credit loss.
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	 The movement in creditors allowance on trade receivables is as follows:
(`In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

(a)	 Revenue from top five customers

-	 Amount of sales 18,917.10 19,227.69

-	 % of total sales 68.69% 64.77%

(b) 	 Financial assets for which loss allowance, measured

-	  Trade Receivables - -

Loss allowance is as follows:

(c) 	 Opening Balance 16.27 3.53

Provided during the year - 12.74

Reversed during the year (9.32) -

Closing Balance 6.95 16.27

		  Other than financial assets mentioned above, none of the Company’s financial assets are either impaired, and there were no 
indications that defaults in payment obligations would occur.

		  Write off policy

	 The financials assets are written off in case there is no reasonable expectation of recovering from the financial asset.

43.	 In accordance with the Ind AS-36 on Impairment of Assets, the Company has assessed as on the balance sheet date, whether there are 
any indications with regard to the impairment of any of the assets. Based on such assessment it has been ascertained that no potential 
loss is present and therefore, formal estimate of recoverable amount has not been made. Accordingly no impairment loss has been 
provided in the books of account.

44.	 The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006, to the extent such parties have been identified from the available information:

Sr 
no Particulars

As at
31 March, 2025 

(`in Lakhs)

As at 
31 March, 2024 

(` in Lakhs)

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid 224.75 26.91

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid - -

(iii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along-with the amount of payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during the period

- -

(iv) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding 
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006.

- -

(v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

(vi) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises

- -
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45.	 Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility.
	 As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company meeting the applicable threshold, need to spend at least 2% of the average 

net profit for the immediate preceding three financial years on CSR activities as defined in Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013.
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

a.  Amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 45.01 70.11

b. Amount of expenditure incurred: * 45.01# 110.02

c. Shortfall at the end of the year Nil Nil

d. Total of previous years shortfall Nil Nil

e. Related party transactions: Nil Nil

*Nature of CSR activities:

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

a) Promoting Education 8.41 89.27

b) Promoting Healthcare 12.50 -

c) Rural Development Projects 7.10 20.75

d) Others 17.00 # -

Total 45.01 110.02

		  # The company has incurred excess CSR expenditure of `19.03 lakhs in previous years, out of which `17.00 lakhs has been adjusted in the current year. 
This excessive expenditure of `19.03 lakhs was adequately disclosed in the previous year’s Directors’ Report and was also submitted with ROC via CSR-2 
(of earlier years).

		  #The company also has booked liability amounting to `7.05 lakhs against the interest received on CSR fixed deposits under the head of other current 
financial liabilities.

46.	 A. Disclosure under Ind AS 115 “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
	 a. Disaggregated revenue information:

	 The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contract with customers using the existing segment and timing of transfer of 
goods is adequate for its circumstances. The companies believes the disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount and timing 
and uncertain of revenue and cash flows are affected.

(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Revenue from contract with customers

Sale of products

Finished Goods (Fibre & Tow) 27,539.14 29,685.30

Raw Materials (Acrylonitrile & Vinyl Acetate Monomer) 562.03 -

Other Operating revenue

Scrap Sales 49.44 62.51
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	 Disaggregated revenue information
(` In Lakhs)

Disaggregation of revenue based on product For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Revenue from Acrylic Fibre and Tow 27,539.14 29,685.30

Revenue from Trading Goods (Acrylonitrile and VAM) 562.03 -

Total Revenue from Operations 28,101.17 29,685.30

Revenue by location of customers

Revenue from Customers based in India 27,409.62 29,683.73

Revenue from Customers based outside India 129.52 1.57

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 27,539.14 29,685.30

Timing of Revenue Recognition

Goods transferred to customers at a point in time 27,539.14 29,685.30

Goods transferred to customers over time  -  -

Total Revenue from Operations 27,539.14 29,685.30

	 b. 	 Trade receivables and contract balances –

	 The company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as Trade receivables.

	 The balances of trade receivables at the beginning and end of reporting period have been disclosed at Note no. 10

	 Trade receivables are presented net of impairment in the Balance sheet.

	 Contract Liabilities includes advances received from customers to deliver goods.

	 The revenue of ` Nil has been recognized during the period ended 31 March 2025 (Previous year- Nil) against performance 
obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous period.

c.	 Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss with contract price
(` In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

Revenue as per Contract Price 27,912.08 29,900.61

Less : Adjustments

Sale Return 23.48 22.72

Discount 349.46 192.59

27,539.14 29,685.30
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d. 	 Performance obligation

	 Sale of goods: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satisfied when control of goods is transferred to customer, 
generally on delivery of goods satisfied at a point in time and payment is generally due as per terms of contract with customer  
(5 day in case of domestic; 90 days in against letter of credit).

f.	 Remaining performance obligation

	 The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as 
at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue.

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2025

For the year ended 
31 March, 2024

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially 
unsatisfied as at end of reporting period

NIL NIL

46.B. Assets pledged as Security:-
The Carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current borrowings are as follows:-

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31 March, 2025

As at 
31 March, 2024

Non-Current Investments

*Nil (31 March 2024: Nil) - -

Total Assets Pledged as Security - -

46.C. Reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising from 
cash flow and non-cash changes as per the requirement of Ind AS-7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024

Current 
Borrowings

Non-current 
Borrowings (incl. 

current maturities)

Current 
Borrowings

Non-current 
Borrowings (incl. 

current maturities)

Opening Balance of Financial 
liabilities coming under the financing 
activities of Cash Flow Statement

113.58 - 33.78 -

Changes during the year

a)	 Changes from financing cash flow (95.89) - 79.80 -

b)	� Changes arising from obtaining 
or losing control of subsidiaries or 
other business

- - - -

c)	� the effect of changes in foreign 
exchanges rates- (Gain)/Loss

- - - -

d)	 Changes in fair value - - - -

e)	 Other Changes - - - -

Closing Balance of Financial 
liabilities coming under the 
financing activities of Cash Flow 
Statement

17.69 - 113.58 -
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47. 		 The Code on Social Security 2020 has been notified in the Official Gazette on 29th September 2020. The effective date from which the 
changes are applicable is yet to be notified. Impact if any of the change will be assessed and accounted in the period in which said 
Code becomes effective.

48. 	 Ratios:

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31/03/2025 31/03/2024  %age 
change Remarks

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.25 2.33 -3.68%

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.001 0.005 -84.14% Refer note (i)

(c) Debt-service 
coverage ratio

Earnings available for debt 
service: = Net profit after 
taxes + Depreciation/
amortizations + finance cost+ 
Loss on sale of fixed assets

Debt Service: = Finance 
cost & lease payments 
+ principal repayments

60.86 82.43 -26.17% Refer note (ii)

(d) Return on equity 
ratio

Net profits after taxes Average shareholder’s 
equity

4.91% 7.18% -31.65% Refer note (iii)

(e) Inventory turnover 
ratio

Revenue from operations Average Inventory 3.61 3.76 -3.90%

(f ) Trade receivables 
turnover ratio

Revenue from operations Average Trade 
receivables

22.52 20.07 12.22%

(g) Trade payables 
turnover ratio

Total purchases Average Trade payables 5.06 5.07 -0.35%

(h) Net Capital 
turnover ratio

Revenue from operations Working Capital 
= Current Assets - 
Current Liabilities

2.24 2.83 -20.57%

(i) Net Profit ratio Net profits after taxes Revenue from 
operations

4.20% 5.89% -28.78% Refer note (iv)

(j) Return on capital 
employed

Earnings before interest and 
taxes

Capital Employed 6.56% 8.63% -23.95%

(k) Return on 
investment

Interest on Fixed deposits + 
Profit on sale of investments 
+ Fair valuation gain on 
investments

Average Investment 6.96% 7.11% -2.14%

	 Remarks for more than 25 % change in ratios of FY 2024-25 as compared to FY 2023-24:

(i)	  Debt Equity ratio is lower as compared to previous year mainly on account of lower utilization of cash credit limit 0.96 Cr.

(ii) 	 Debt-service coverage ratio has decreased as compared to previous year, mainly on account of lower earnings by `8.48 cr. Lower 
earnings are on account of market condition, as compared to previous year. Production was interrupted for 48 days due to market 
condition and lower margin. Although previous year was affected due to market condition with production interruption for 37 days.

(iii) 	 Return on equity ratio has decreased as compared to previous year, mainly on account of lower earnings by ̀ 5.71 cr. Lower earnings 
are on account of market condition, as compared to previous year. Production was interrupted for 48 days due to market condition 
and lower margin. Although previous year was affected due to market condition with production interruption for 37 days.

(iv)	 Net profit ratio has decreased as compared to previous year, mainly on account lower earnings by `5.71 cr. Lower earnings are on 
account of lower margins based on market conditions affecting business during current year.
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Notes to Financial Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2025	 (All amounts in H lakhs unless otherwise stated)

49. 	 The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding have been initiated or pending against the company 
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988).

50. 	 The company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

51. 	 The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 
560 of Companies Act, 1956.

52.	  The company does not have any such transactions which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other 
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

53.	 The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

(a) 	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

54.	 The company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding parties) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a)	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b)	 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

55. 	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency, during the financial year.

56. 	 There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and their related parties (as defined 
under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

(a) 	 repayable on demand; or

(b) 	 without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

57. 	 The company has taken unsecured borrowings from banks (No security provided). The quarterly returns/statements are not 
required to be filed by the company with the banks.

58. 	 The company does not have any charge or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

59. 	 Previous year figures in the financial statements, including the notes thereto, have been reclassified wherever required to confirm 
to the current year presentation/classification.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vardhman Acrylics Limited

Satin Katyal Raish Shaikh Vivek Gupta S.P. Oswal
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director Chairman

Membership No:-A40578 DIN: 10366909 DIN: 00121737
Place: Ludhiana Place: Jhagadia Place: Gurugram Place: Ludhiana

Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025 Date: 30-April-2025
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